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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEREREEB I RED

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, and the trading of rubber and food products.
The Group also deploys financial resource to securities investment
and fund investment to achieve earnings in the form of capital
appreciation and income from dividends.

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
products

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products is one of
the principal business of the Group. The Group manufactures its
products with single layer or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in
accordance with specific requirements and standards of different
customers. Most of the customers of nonwoven fabric products are
primary manufacturers and suppliers of automotive parts in the PRC.
The majority of the Group's products are further processed by these
customers in order to make different automotive parts such as floor,
head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk, luggage-side trim, hubcap
and car-mat, which are of different characteristics and are to be
applied for different usages in passenger vehicles.

According to the statistics released from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers, the production and sales of passenger
vehicles in the PRC were approximately 24,421,000 units and
24,377,000 units respectively for the year ended 31 December
2016, representing an increase of approximately 15.5% and 14.9%.
However, as a result of increasing competition in the automotive
industry, there were i) a decrease in profit margin of manufacturing
and sale of nonwoven fabric products of the Group and ii) a loss on
segment result of approximately HK$3.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

Supply and procurement operation

The Group commenced its business of rubber trading since 2012
and the quoted price of rubber was generally varied according to
the tendency of the commodities markets. To manage the risk, the
Group mainly carried out that business in back-to-back model. As
the significant fluctuation in price of top commaodities, crude oil, the
Group only accepted the orders with lower default risk and caused a
significant decrease in revenue of trading of rubber.

Since the third quarter of 2016, the Group resumed the business of
trading of food products and generated steady income to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Placing of new shares

On 22 August 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which it agreed to procure
independent placees to subscribe for an aggregate of 331,776,000
new shares in the Company (the “Placing”) at a price of HK$0.145
per placing share. On 8 September 2016, the Placing was completed
where a total of 331,776,000 new shares were issued. Net proceeds
from the Placing was approximately HK$46.8 million (the “Net
Proceeds”) which was intended to be used i) for the proposed
investment in a licensed corporation and ii) for the subscription of
rights shares of an investment (the “Subscription”). At 31 December
2016, approximately HK$22.8 million of the Net Proceeds were
utilized for the Subscription and the remaining approximately
HK$24.0 million were placed with banks and would be used as
intended.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 was illustrated as follows:
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Year ended 31 December
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2016 2015
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Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles AR R E #4510
— Sales of automotive floor carpets —AEMBAHE 114,145 96,529
— Sales of other automotive parts —Hi)RBERHEE 80,867 63,507
Sales of rubber BBHHEE 11,102 22,057
Sales of garment accessories EIXEL R SHE - 13,711
Sales of food products RmAriEE 1,710 =
207,824 195,804
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue
increased to approximately RMB207.8 million, compared to
approximately RMB195.8 million in 2015, representing a increase of
approximately 6.1%. The increase in the Group's revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue of sales of automotive floor
carpets and other automotive parts.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's gross profit
and profit margin respectively decreased to approximately RMB26.0
million and 12.5%. The decrease was mainly due to the increase in
production costs of the Group.

Other gain or losses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, The Group’s other gain or
losses decreased by approximately RMB302.1 million from a gain of
approximately RMB183.7 million in 2015 to a loss of approximately
RMB118.4 million in 2016. The decrease was mainly due to the
loss on held-for-trading investments of approximately RMB44.2
million and impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets of
approximately RMB77.7 million.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, The Group’s administrative
expenses decreased by approximately RMB2 million to approximately
RMB31.1 million. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in impairment loss recognised on goodwill of business
of rubber trading. The impairment loss arose due to the adverse
economic situation, the management has made certain conservative
assumption on the forecast, including but not limited to decrease in
estimated turnover.

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB133.6 million for the year of 2016 compared with
a profit of approximately RMB132.0 million for the corresponding
period of 2015. The change was mainly due to the loss on
held-for-trading investments and the impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial assets.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

HE-_Z—RE+-_A=+—HIFE KXEEHY
WAMELARK2078BET —E— A%
BHUARKEI958A BT HERL6.1% KGR -
REBMBRAEMEZHRTEMB R EMTER
A S & WS 3B M FT B -

E7
BHE_Z-—RF+T_A=+T—HILEE FEEHH
ENMEFMBEESBRAIZEHDARK2608E TR
125% WA ETBEREAASAEBENEEKAN LT
P

Hih sk &8
BHE-_Z—XRE+-_A=+—RHILFE XEHHY
HMRA R EBR S —AE RN ARK183.7
ABETRLHOARBINRIABETLE-_E—REH
BOARBNNSAEE T - RO ETEZEHNFEEE
RENBEHOARBMU2EEBE TR AR EE SR
BEMREEBEBHOARBIZTIEETLHE

TTHB X
HE-Z-—RE+T-A=+—HILFE T5EHN
THRAXRIOARBBEBTLENAREII A
BT B TEAREIBREEERBERNEE
HOREREPTE - BUEBE AR E BT R REM
BOEREERRAFLEETRIRR BFED
PRIAR DAt &R -

RAREREARIEER
AABFEEAREBER _ZT-R"EFHR/RARE
1336AB L - M_ZE-—AFRBANRENAR
K12 08B L - EHT2ARNFIEFEERENES
BRAHLESREENREBEME-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

OUTLOOK

The Board expects that 2017 will still be a challenging year for
the business of manufacture and sale of nonwoven products as
the continuously increase in production costs for maintaining
competitiveness and enhancing safety requirements to cope with
the development of the automotive industry. To maintain its income
stream, the Group will deploy its resources on:

(1) upgrading the production lines in order to improve the
production efficiency;

(2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demands on high-end products;

(3) conducting research and development to keep up with the
latest technological trends in relation to product specifications;
and

(4) strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer
loyalty and reinforce the Group’s reputation in the nonwoven
fabric industry in the PRC.

As a result of the increasing risk of volatility in rubber price since
the fluctuation in price of crude oil, the Group would be cautious in
accepting orders to avoid any downside exposure. Furthermore, the
Group would allocate the idle financial resources originally for the
business of trading of rubber to expand the business of trading of
foods products.

On 14 October 2016, the Group committed to invest in GEO
Securities Limited (“GEO Securities”). GEO Securities has the licenses
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Future
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong.
The Board expects this investment will be completed in April 2017
and the Company would through a joint venture company, Prominent
Alliance Limited, indirectly hold 42% of the equity interest in GEO
Securities upon completion.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and enhancing
the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for potential
investment opportunities to diversify its business scope.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities nEBE
Current ratio mEN L &

The current ratio of the Group at 31 December 2016 was 2.61 times
as compared to that of 10.63 times at 31 December 2015. It was
mainly resulted from the decrease in held-for-trading investments
and increase in tax payable during 2016.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio (represented by
totals of bank borrowings divided by summation of total bank
borrowings and equity) amounted to approximately 7% (2015: 5%).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing. On 8 September 2016, the Company
placed and allotted 331,776,000 shares at HK$0.145 to independent
investors. The Net Proceeds was approximately HK$46.8 million.

At 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB86.4 million (2015: RMB83.3
million), and approximately RMB81.5 million (2015: RMB65.0 million)
of which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars. Taking into account the Group's cash reserves and recurring
cash flows from its operations, the Group’s financial position is stable
and healthy.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except 331,776,000 shares of the Company were issued and allotted
on 8 September 2016, there has been no material change in the
capital structure of the Group since 31 December 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. At 31
December 2016, the Group had no significant exposure under
foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEREREEENREDN (F)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2016, the Group held a discretionary investment
fund ("Discretionary Fund”) as available-for-sale financial assets.
The investment in the Discretionary Fund was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the general meeting of the Company
held on 16 February 2016. The Discretionary Fund is managed by
a corporation licensed under the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The investment objective
of the Discretionary Fund is to generate income and/or achieve
capital appreciation through investing in a variety of the authorized
investments.

Except the Discretionary Fund, at 31 December 2016, there was no
investment held by the Group which value was more than 5% of the
net assets of the Group.

Detail of the Discretionary Fund are as follows:

Year ended

31 December
2016
HE-Z—XF
+t=A=+-A
LHFE

Impairment loss

HE &R
RMB’000
AR®T R

Discretionary Fund 77,689

MiEESE

The Group subscripted the Discretionary Fund mainly by subscription
in kind with the shares of a Hong Kong listed company, China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (“CJH"). The impairment loss on the
Discretionary Fund of approximately RMB77.7 million was mainly due
to the decline in share price of CJH, which weighted approximately
81.6% in its portfolio at 31 December 2016. Looking ahead, the
value of the Discretionary Fund may be susceptible to the overall
equity market conditions.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENREDN (F

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s buildings with a carrying amounts
of approximately RMB6.3 million (2015: RMB6.6 million) and prepaid
land lease payments with a carrying amounts of approximately
RMB2.7 million (2015: RMB2.8 million) were pledged to banks for
bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 152
employees (2015: 150). The remuneration policy of the employees of
the Group was set up by the Board on the basis of their experience,
qualifications and competence. Other employees’ benefits include
contributions to statutory mandatory provident funds, and social
insurance together with housing provident funds to its employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing the
Group’s remuneration policy and structure for all directors and senior
management of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business
partners and investors for their support and trust towards the Group.
Further, | would like to express my sincere thanks to our Directors
and employees for their dedications and contributions to the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEENBERER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and founder of the Group. He
was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April 2010. He has
over 14 years of experience in the nonwoven textile industry. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s corporate strategy,
overseeing its production operations and the overall steering of the
Group's strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981
and was approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate
Level Adjudication Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering
Department in 1990. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the
director and the general manager of Xiamen Marine Industries
(Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated company and was
previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate Governance
Degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, namely Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited (currently
known as China Household Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 692),
from September 2006 to October 2010. He has extensive experience
in accounting and corporate compliance.

Ms. Xiao Suni, aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director on
14 October 2014. She has over 10 years of experience in the field
of international trading and marketing. She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Nanjing Army Command College, the PRC with major
in English. Prior to joining the Group, she worked for a door-window
manufacturer in the PRC as foreign trade manager, in which her
responsibilities focused on overall management of foreign sales and
marketing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is a practising certified public
accountant and has more than 19 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing.

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of Xinhua
Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd., (Stock code: 811) from
July 2013 to February 2016 and the company secretary and financial
controller of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 295) from
September 2005 to November 2009.

Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline, aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 September 2015. Ms. Ng has over 10
years of experience in human resources and corporate management.
Ms. Ng obtained a Certificate of Human Resources Management from
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2011 and was a senior administrative
officer of a renowned international information technology company
in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zhu Chunyan, aged 40, was graduated from Xiangtan
University, China, with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in finance and
accounting in July 1999. Since 2000, she had worked for a sizable
travel related services company in the PRC as an accountant and
gained extensive knowledge in corporate finance and management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Haiying, aged 47, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd. (“Joystar
Wuxi”) since 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the production
process and quality control of the Group.

Ms. Wang graduated from Wuhan Institute of Textile Engineering
(currently known as Wuhan Textile University) in 1994, specialising in
textile engineering. She has extensive experience in the industrial use
textile industry and joined the Group as the head of quality control
department of Joystar Wuxi in 2004.

Mr. Han Zhiqging, aged 63, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar Wuxi since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers" University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr. Han
has over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use textile
industry.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 42, is the manager of the accounting
department of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the financial
reporting and the management of the accounting and finance
department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional issued
by the Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the Qualification
Certificate of Specialty and Technology with specialty in accountancy
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 1997 and 2006
respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed an online diploma programme in
accountancy from China Agricultural University. She has 18 years of
experience in financial accounting and reporting.

Mr. Wu Ganghua, aged 46, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of Joystar Wuxi. He is responsible for the sales
and marketing operation of Joystar Wuxi.

In 1990, Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu Province Wuxi City College
of Mechanical Manufacturing (currently known as Wuxi Institute of
Technology). He was qualified as an assistant engineer in mechanical
manufacturing by Wuxi City Professional Title Reform Committee in
1996. Mr. Wu further obtained a graduation certificate from Nanjing
Normal University in 1999. Mr. Wu joined Joystar Wuxi in 2004.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7, the
Company complied with the Code for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such deviation from
Code provision A.2.1 is deemed appropriate as it is considered to
be more efficient to have one single person as the Chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of a
chief executive officer, and it provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of long
term business strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are
three independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them
possess adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient protection
of its interests.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. Owing
to other business engagements, two independent non-executive
Directors, Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun, were
unable to attend the general meetings of the Company held on
16 February 2016 and 3 June 2016.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings concerning
securities transactions by the Directors during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2016, the Board comprises three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the “Biographical
Information of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 11 to
13 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
o Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group’s business operations;

o Evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives,
and ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems are in places;
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o Material acquisitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
significant capital expenditure;

o Appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members
and auditors;

o Remuneration of Directors;

o Communications with key stakeholders;

o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final
dividends

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates
day-to-day activities to the management with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. The non-executive
Directors serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance and risk management
of the Group through their contributions in board meetings. They are
also serving on remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee.

During the year, the Board complies with the requirement of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall
business, development strategy, operations and financial reporting
of the Company. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. During the year ended
31 December 2016, ten Board meetings and two general meetings
were held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

No. of attendance

General Board

Members meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 172 10/10
Mr. Wong Ho Yin 2/2 10/10
Ms. Xiao Suni 0/2 7/10
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2 6/10
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 0/2 4/10
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

(appointed on 2 September 2016) 0/0 2/3
Ms. Sung Kwan Wan

(retired on 3 June 2016) 0/2 1/2

The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting respectively.
The company secretary will distribute relevant documents to the
Directors in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.
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In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties
to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary prepares minutes
of the Board meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The company secretary
also keeps the minutes of the Board meetings, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single
person as the Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the
executive functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development
and execution of long term business strategies. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations of the Board which comprises highly experienced
individuals. There are three independent non-executive Directors on
the Board. All of them possess adequate independence and therefore
the Board considers the Company has achieved balance and provided
sufficient protection of its interests.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. A Director appointed
since the most recent annual general meeting shall hold office
only until the next general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election. The independent non-executive Directors were appointed
at specific terms for one year.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable training
or read relevant materials in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has received from each Director
a confirmation of their participation in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing the
terms of remuneration packages, determining the award of bonuses
and considering the grant of options under the share option scheme
of the Company. At 31 December 2016, the remuneration committee
comprises one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho
(chairman of the remuneration committee) and Ms. Zhu Chunyan.
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During the year, two meetings was held by the remuneration
committee to discuss, among other things, the remuneration policy
of the Group and determine the remuneration of the Directors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:
Members No. of attendance

Executive Director
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan
(appointed on 2 September 2016) VAl

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The nomination committee comprises
one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (chairman of
the nomination committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline.

During the year, two meetings was held by the nomination
committee to, among other things, review the structure, size and
composition of the board and assess the independence of each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
also reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness
and considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meeting held during the year:
Members No. of attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 1/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are, among
other things, to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. At 31 December 2016, the audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho
(chairman of the audit committee), Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and Ms.
Zhu Chunyan.

During the year, two meetings were held by the audit committee.
The following table shows the attendance of individual members at
the meetings held during the year:
Members No. of attendance

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

(appointed on 2 September 2016) 0/0

During the year, the audit committee, among other things, reviewed
the interim and annual reports as well as result announcements
before submission to the Board. The audit committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and the legal requirements in review of the Company’s
interim and annual reports as well as result announcements. The
audit committee also reviewed the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and make recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules, and
the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and also reviews any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors for the Group, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. During the year, the auditors performed the
work of statutory audit for the year of 2016. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the remuneration payable and paid to the
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited were as follows:

E 2R
FEZIRT

Audit services
Non-audit services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness to safeguard the Group's assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate business risk; to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities; and to give
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, which included the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper dissemination
via the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange.

22 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

¥ B B 3 B

ERZECRAEZEZ EIMNEXBED RBE SN
ZBED RN R B P TT ORI SEAX BB - B4R X
SREBESLHAEEBREMNEEERT
MEB-FR RBMEAT T - RNFFEZE
EER -BE_Z-—R"F+_A=t—BLFE"
ENRENTHREBNEESAMEBRERAF
WS mT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
1,076 1,200

[ B i R X R S 4

EEe2EAANHREEASE S EK BB
BEREAZENREBRMEEREE  #R2EARHNE
REEFABERRGYRIEARL REALE
BEE-

ARERRANERFRNEEERMEMRE
BER BHREAEEEERTHBREMEE
T WIEHA IR TR RBEE A BRI B
i eiA K -

EXZgABERZEERIAREAREERA
MEZERNTRMERBENRME BRENK 2ER
EREENFREREERBE HEREest RMBE
BRENER BTEERKRONTRE REE
BlEESSECE

A2 A B SR EE 8 18 1630 5 R B8 8 R0 7EE B
2B IR BB T B4 R B BB R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EEER®RE (A

The Company has engaged an external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year ended
31 December 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Board considered the Group's internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the code
provisions on risk management and internal control as set out in the
Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is also responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. As an employee of the
Company, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, the company secretary of the Company,
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge in 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedure for nominating a new Director

Pursuant to Article 83(2) of the articles of association of the
Company (the "Articles”), subject to the Articles and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

Procedure for convening an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholder
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedure for sending enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect of
their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong and for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include the
publication of annual and interim reports, notices, announcements,
circulars and constitutional documents, the Company’s website at
www.joystar.com.hk and meetings with investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.
It provides an opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders. The chairman of the meeting explains
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any
questions from shareholders. The poll results are published on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board does not aware of any changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group.
The auditors of the Company is responsible to form an independent
opinion based on the audit, on the financial statements prepared by
the Directors and report the opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, and the trading of rubber and food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement & Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 10 of this report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 43 and 44.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the statement of financial position on pages 45 to 46 and in Note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of Financial
Information” on page 140 in this report.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 47. The movements in the reserves of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to owners of the Company comprising share premium
account amounted to approximately RMB126,868,000 (2015:
RMB114,969,000).

RESENNEESE A

EZEMALINERESRAEBABE_T—KF
+TZA=+— EJJ:EEE’J%&%TZ%?QW%%#&%°

FEXEH
AEEFERNSHERHEERN TERNMMFRE
BN ESMERARETEBRER

X% e
AEBBE—T-—AF+-_A=+-ALFEZ
EBEEHNAREFIAZTE0AN[EFB/E
REBEAREDN] -

EBERBBEMRR
REBRBE-_TE—NF+-_A=+—"BILFE
MEBHNFIBERFMB 2 BHEREME
ER S

REEBRARGR-_E—AR"F+_A=+—80H
EBRMRRADBIEHNRFEI5H EFA6H 258 P B
R B IEAR R R A R AT & B S R R BT 5E44 o

iR A

ARANBARDFBERREA
29 -

1 7% 3R B o

Ff /B 2 7]
ERARRBIMB AR 2B
21 e

HREERSE
AEBZUBEEREENBEREHRNARKE
FI40E 2 [MHBERBE] —6-

BN AR A B % R R MY

it

$EIBAESZ;|;_7 /‘Ti-i—*ﬂfﬂ——ﬁu:ifﬁ

w@i Bt o H i Etif%ﬁ%
HBBR S M B REMI 44 o

A 4 2 IR fik 4
R=B—"F+=A=+—R XRATHS K

TARRRBEAEANFFHEECEBRONEEROARE
126,868,000t (= F— A% : AR#¥114,969,000
7E) ©

—ZT—N¥EHR 25



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE (&)

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 58% (2015: 56.8%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 23% (2015: 27.1%) of total sales. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 32% (2015: 40.0%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
12% (2015: 11.9%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during
the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group.

Reliance on major customers

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 58% (2015: 56.8%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 23% (2015: 27.1%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the Group
is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume and
profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.
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Reliance on raw materials

The Group's production requires large quantities of raw materials,
which are mainly artificial and synthetic fibres, for the production of
nonwoven fabric. There is no assurance that the Group will always be
able to secure an adequate supply of raw materials at commercially
viable prices to meet the Group's future production requirements.
Moreover, fluctuations in the prices of the raw materials may increase
the cost of inventories sold and reduce the gross profit and gross
margin of the Group.

Reliance on limited number of suppliers

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 32% (2015: 40.0%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12% (2015: 11.9%) of total purchases.
If any of these suppliers do not continue to supply materials to the
Group at favourable or similar prices or at all, the Group may not be
able to find another suitable replacement supplier in a timely manner
or on terms acceptable to the Group or at all, and the Group’s
business, results of operations and financial condition could be
adversely affected.

Other financial risks

The Group also faces other financial risks in the ordinary course of
business. Details of financial risk management objectives and policies
are set out in Notes 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
its employees. The Group continues to provide training for its staff
to enhance technical and product knowledge as well as knowledge
of industry quality standards. The Group maintains good working
relationships with its employees and has not experienced any material
disruption of its normal business operations due to strikes or labour
disputes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s good relationship with its
customers depends on its ability to produce reliable products for
its customers. The Group conducts surveys on customers’ feedback
on the Group's products, the results of which will be analyzed and
used to formulate measures of improvement. This provides a channel
for the Group's customers to monitor the quality of the Group's
products.
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The Group's major suppliers are manufacturers of artificial and
synthetic fibers being the Group’s primary raw materials. The
Directors consider that the reliability of suppliers are essential to
maintaining an efficient production process of the Group. The Group
has laid down detailed supplier selection procedures, and conducts
reviews on its suppliers regularly and also upon any material changes
in the suppliers'delivery period, quality of supply, price and service.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Committed to minimizing any environmental impact caused by its
production (such as noise, sewage and exhaust gas), the Group
adopts quality control measures and a comprehensive environmental
management system to ensure that the Group manufactures quality
products with minimum impacts on the environment. Meanwhile,
concerning environmental conservation, the Group follows the
internal guiding principles set out below in operating its business:

o to be committed to complying with relevant laws and
regulations;

o to strengthen the training of staff so that they all participate in
protecting the environment;

o to continuously improve and implement daily environmental
monitoring, review and management so as to prevent pollution;
and

. to economize on the consumption of resources.

Further details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2016 to be published within three
months from the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group work closely with its advisers and auditors to review the
Group's affairs and ensure full compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself
is listed on the Stock Exchange. As far as the Company is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mak Wai Ho

Ms, Ng Li La, Adeline

Ms. Zhu Chunyan (appointed on 2 September 2016)
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun (retired on 3 June 2016)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) and Article 84(1) of the Company's articles
of association, Ms. Zhu Chunyan, Mr. Wong Ho Yin and Ms. Xiao
Suni shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the
retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
by the remuneration committee of the Company and approved
by the Board, having regard to the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group; the
Company's operating results and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the "“Scheme”)
on 5 June 2015 to which the Directors and eligible employees,
among others are entitled to participate in. The Company operates
the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Details of the Scheme are set out in paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” below.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2016, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions of which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO) or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of Directors

B B RESENME

Beneficial owner
Em#EAA

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
HRERE

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in the Company
or any body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued))
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS

IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES' INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” on page 30 of this report, at 31 December 2016, the
Directors of the Company were not aware of any persons who had,
or was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
in accordance with the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO; or be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”
on page 30 of this report, at no time during the year was the
Company, or its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE (&)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no material
transactions with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2016
are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, the Directors and
every one of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which the Directors or any of
them, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued))
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date of
the Scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options
to the eligible participants, including but not limited to, any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether independent or
not) and any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any other person, who has contributed to the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme.
The limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit
must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. However, the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. At 31 December 2016, the total number of shares
available for issued under the Scheme was 138,240,000 shares,
which represented approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of adopting the Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not been significant events took place subsequent to
31 December 2016.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

B AR

B # w6 8% mA4RAI

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out
on pages 43 to 139, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
BYRBETRE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit consolidated

HREXSEE
RERMNFEXHE BREZSASRMATER
AHENGEEMBRRTREZNFTR - RMAES

financial statements of the current period. These matters were BGEAMEREXR (BEMS) AR EREREE

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

BHEEHE MIASRLEETRERRRER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREEREHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BEZ R E

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HERE B mRME23 -

The Group has goodwill, net of provision for impairment of
approximately RMB457,000,000 relating to trading of rubber
business under supply and procurement operation segment.
AEEEMHERKBEESH T2 EERREB2EE (R
MEREE) BHAR457,000,0007T ©

Management performed impairment assessment of goodwill
and concluded that an impairment loss of goodwill
approximately RMB6,829,000 were recognised. This conclusion
was based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount rate and
the underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue growth
and capital expenditure. Independent external valuation were
obtained in order to support management estimates.
EREHHBETRENGRRR/HARKE,829,000T 2
BREBECERR AR NDREBEEREERXNAETREY
FRERBERESR LEERRRBEEERERFTZHEKR
H i o © BB N ER T EEE M AT -

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMzBRnMEEREERSR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BPERERERENEZEFEE:

o Evaluating of the independent valuer’s competence
capabilities and objectivity;

o FIEBUMEMNERE EAMTEML:

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based on our
knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

e  EERMEEBETENABILEBRMHEERR
FHEPTER AR AR BB E B 1t

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumption
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

e MKEBERMEAZEBMITENAD ERAZKRERA
arnt: &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

. BRMET A RETEA AW AR A ERE IR
R -

We found that the assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.
HMEER ZEBRR{BAEREFF-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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Key audit matter

HREREE

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

FEWE 5 E R

Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
ELHRA B IREMEE25 -

The Group has trade receivables of approximately
RMB133,176,000 and impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables of approximately RMB4,130,000. Management
judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of trade receivables and adequacy of allowance
made.

EEEARWE HFIELHARE133,176,000T R EKE 5
HIBFE R E BB A R®4,130,0007T 75T I 78 E FE W
B 5 5RIE 2 AT e R B AR B 2 SRR R R B IR I 2 B o

The judgement mainly includes estimating and evaluating
expected future receipts from customers based on past
payment trend, age of the debtors, knowledge of the
customers’ business and financial condition.

A FTZERERBBAENRBE Kk TR EBAS KB
RS - b Er R EHE P 2 AR 2R 5K -

RESENNEESE A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMzERnMERRARERSR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivable included:

BRMEHEEEREKE SRR ZREN G ZREFEE:

o Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit limits
and credit periods given to customers with the
management;

. HERENwm EEEAERTEFGEERBRE
EHZIERF

o Evaluating the management’s impairment

assessment of trade receivables;

s FHEEEEBHEKREZZRZRERNE:

o Assessing, validating and discussing with the
management and evaluating their assessment on
the recoverability of the outstanding debts and the
adequacy of allowance made based on the trade
receivables ageing analysis, collections subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, past collection
history and trend analysis and knowledge of the
businesses, with focus on long outstanding debts
and debts which are past due but not impaired; and

. b BEREEEENR RIBEKE S FIERR
AT WMEMREBERF BERKELRBE D
NEEBRB ZERANRKEEEBRE GHE
RBEER AR REEES TRE M REE
R E s EmE: &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the information included in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables.

. ERMEE RERWE S RIBZ BREN AR
BRI Em MR-

We found that the management assessment were
supported by the available evidence.

HMER EEENEAABRES -
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Key audit matter

BREREE

Impairment assessment of the available-for-sale financial assets

Rt Ee B EEZREFG

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 A M BIMEMEEI9

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held a portfolio
of available-for-sale financial assets with fair value of
approximately RMB235,708,000 and recognised impairment of
approximately RMB77,689,000 in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

RZEBE-—RE+ZA=T—B FAEEFERAERHARE
235,708,000 v It ECBMEEMLS WREFEEHEERE
fib 2 T U 2 R M TSR R E £ A R #577,689,0007T °

The Group recognises impairment for available-for-sale
financial assets in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when there is objective
evidence of impairment, which includes when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment. The impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement or profit or loss and other comprehensive income
is the cumulative difference between cost and fair value. The
impairment for available-for-sale financial assets is significant
and determination of whether there is objective evidence of
impairment involves significant management judgement.

REREBHERER (BER—EHRE A FEKRBLEE
THE) AEERGAERRAMEEKERARATHEE
TREERAME REeBRa AN E KRR AER 2R
BRRAEATE RFZE -AIHEECREEZHERS
ARBEREHARHHRAERERETEEIELEANAE-

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEfMzBRnMERRARERSER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of the available-for-sale financial assets included

BMEAAREESREEZRETGEZEFERE

o Comparing the fair value of all available-for-sale
financial assets as at 31 December 2016 to external
third party and recalculating the cumulative fair
value gain or loss;

. KB HEESREER_ZT—RETA
=T —HZAFEEISE=FETHE R ENR
2 AT EWRSEE

o Discussing with management whether there was
any objective evidence of impairment of individual
available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December
2016 and critically challenging management’s
assertions and conclusions; and

. HERBENmRN _ZE—R"ETA=+—H02E5
AMEESRHEER S HBEBTBRERE LI A
WEREBE B RER: &

o Assessing whether there was objective evidence of
impairment for available-for-sale financial assets
where there was a cumulative fair value loss as at
31 December 2016.

. AR ZE—R"F+TZA=1+T—BHBRFAFE
BEZAHCESHEESSHRETERERE -

We found that the assessment were supported by the
available evidence.

HPI%R FEAAEERE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

40 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
BYRBETRE (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HIB Hodgson Impey Cheng limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREREREMEEHKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
' E—NFL A=+ —HIFFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—AF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

g3 AR®T R ARMBTT

Revenue A 9 207,824 195,804
Cost of sales 4 & AR (181,862) (165,432)
Gross profit EF 25,962 30,372
Other gain or losses H iU S sk 18 10 (118,397) 183,706
Selling and distribution costs HE RS AR (10,849) (8,799)
Share of loss of an associate BB E QAR EB1E 22 - (6,114)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR 2 WS - 3,709
Administrative expenses 1THRF X (31,053) (33,093)
(Loss)/profit from operations ge (FE) BN 11 (134,337) 169,781
Finance costs B & A AN 12 (1,596) (1,775)
(Loss)/profit before tax BELA (BE) BR (135,933) 168,006
Income tax expense 8 13 2,353 (36,029)

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ZAATEEABGEFEE
the owners of the Company (BR]) &R (133,580) 131,977
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

REBRRHEHMEEKER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 57
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEKS
for the year, net of income tax: HIRFBH%E:
Items that may be reclassified HEmEHoBEREN
subsequently to profit or loss: HE:
Exchange differences on translating HMEBINE ZIEH =58

foreign operations
Impairment loss arising on revaluation of EHAHELESREEEL Y

available-for-sale financial assets REEE
Reclassification adjustments relation to ERAHLEESREEY
impairment loss on available-for-sale BEBEZENH B

financial assets

Total other comprehensive loss/income SEHMEEER WEHEHE

for the year

Total comprehensive loss/income for the XA THEEAEBEEESMA

year attributable to the owners of BEWREE
the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share R (58) BA

44

— Basic and diluted —BEAR NS

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note
b at

14

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMET T

(133,580) 131,977

25,010 22,506

(77,689) -

77,689 -

25,010 22,506

(108,570) 154,483

RMB RMB

AR AR

(7.6 cents 1li) 8.8 cents ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R

At 31 December 2016
R-ZF—NF+=-—HA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Prepaid land lease payments
Goodwill

Current assets
Prepaid land lease payments
Inventories
Trade receivables
Bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Held-for-trading investments
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

RESENNEESE A

BE

ERBEE
EN &
AHHEEREE
B LA &R
[k

RBEE
B L S RIE
3
FEWE 5 IR
EREE
BN RIE e M E AL YRR

REEERE
Be MRTTAER

EERE

R
RATEEAREERR
fE @

A

5

EmARE

Note
M aE

18
19
20
23

20
24
25

26
27
28

29
30

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBT T
53,265 49,166
235,708 -
2,625 2,698
457 7,286
292,055 59,150
73 73
24,566 15,663
133,176 101,531
5,964 4,395
40,759 52,683
36,514 336,349
86,419 83,345
327,471 594,039
619,526 653,189
163,359 134,837
330,486 427,052
493,845 561,889
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

mEMBRRE (F)

At 31 December 2016
R-ZF—NF+-HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bz ARET T ARET T
LIABILITIES =K+
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE 34 = 35,436
- 35,436
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERTE 58 317 39,744 12,239
Accruals and other payables At E R R EAME N KIE 32 9,108 10,728
Bank borrowings RITHE K 33 39,000 29,500
Tax payable FEAT IR 37,829 3,397
125,681 55,864
Total liabilities EEHE 125,681 91,300
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 619,526 653,189
Net current assets REBEERESE 201,790 538,175
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTRBESE 493,845 597,325

Approved by the Board of Director, on 30 March 2017 and signedon R =-Z—+ &= A=+ HmEESH ELH T

its behalf by: ATRREE=:
Zhuang Yuejin Wong Ho Yin
HEBE EER
Director Director
BF BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
RE—F—AFE+-A=+—FILFE

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Exchange difference on
translating foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Release upon disposal of
subsidiaries

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Loss for the year
Exchange difference on
translating foreign operations

Impairment loss arising on revaluation of

available-for-sale financial
Reclassification adjustment
relation to impairment loss

on available-for-sale financial asset

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Issue of shares upon placing
Share issue expenses

At 31 December 2016

RZE2-1%-A-A

B

2
REBNEBZERER

FERANEER

HENBATRED

BORG
BH#ITRX

FEER
REENEHIERZE
EffufthESREEELL
HERR
BRAfHESREEL
BEBRZENDBAE

fE2ENE/ (BB B8
REEEERETRD
RA#TREx

RZZ-AF+ZA=1-H

Foreign

currency  Investment
Share Share Merger  translation  revaluation Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
B& R {E ARG RBERR REAEMER HERE REER REAE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLT  ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETz ARETT  ARET:
113,062 72,970 5992 695 - 11,818 128,583 333,120
- - - - - - 131,977 131,977
N % - 22,506 - - - 22,506
- - - 22,506 - - 131,977 154,483
= = - (511) - = = (511)
21,775 53,350 - - - - - 75,125
- (328) - - - - - (328)
134,837 125,992 5,992 22,690 - 11,818 260,560 561,889
- - - - - - (133,580) (133,580)
- - - 25,010 - - - 25,010
. - - - - - (77,689) (77,689)
= - - - - - 77,689 77,689
- - - 25,010 = - (133,580) (108,570)
28,522 12,834 = = = = = 41,356
- (830) - - - - - (830)
163,359 137,996 5992 47,700 - 11,818 126,980 493,845

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
ZE-ARF —E-hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBEF T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& IZHELENEESRE
Profit before tax B B i A (135,933) 168,006
Adjustments for: AT SEELAE:

Interest expenses FEmMEZ 1,596 1,775

Interest income 2 A (68) (738)

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables LU E 5 IEER AR EE B 4,130 43

Inventories written off FE M 327 200

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BERRBNE 5,795 4,997

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B B A B A ik a - (3,709)

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill REERRNREERE 6,829 16,239

Impairment loss recognised on amount due from &t & Ug B & A B) FUIE #E R R (E

an associate E18 - 3,169
Loss/(gain) on held-for-trading investments BIEEBIRENEER (W) 44,190 (178,732)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEESREENRERSE
financial assets 77,689 -

Share of loss of an associate FEIGEE QRSB - 6,114

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEAT L b F & FRIE 8 73 73

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E¥W% - HE R REEE 68 24
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & & ) A 0 & & @ 7 4,696 17,461
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE(Em b (9,230) 33
Increase in trade receivables FE W E 5 FRIE N (35,775) (30,311)
(Increase)/decrease in bills receivables FEARE= IR () R (1,569) 1,642
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AN REIE - 12e R E M BRI

deposits and other receivables A, (3Ean) 11,924 (12,238)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTE SFIEE M, CRd) 27,505 (6,750)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, EBErER Blike REAM

deposits received and other payables FERERIE CRL) (1,620) 360
Purchase of held-for-trading investments BEREFEERE (33,459) (65,470)
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading HEFIEEEREMBNE

investments 309,764 31,405
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations REEL (FFRA)BESFE 272,236 (63,868)
Interest paid B2 A (1,596) (1,775)
Tax refund BRE 351 404
Income taxes paid EFTEH (1,444) (1,192)
Net cash generated from/(used in) weEESEEL (AR FHE

operating activities 269,547 (66,431)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERTRER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Decrease in pledged bank deposit
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Share issuing expenses

Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and bank balances

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FESEABREEER QA

RETHEENWERERE

2 KA S

BEWE BENMRE
BEAUHLESREE
HEME  BEERERFHEA

EERRITETORD
HEMBRTANBRSRAFR

KRERY (FA) /EERSFHE

METHELENRERE
18 SR P15 3R

EE AR

B fn 3177 <

BTN TS 3RIR
BETPMSHESFR

RERRESEEY (BD) &
R

REANRERAEEEY

INEEL DY B

RELNBRERAESEEY

RERRESESENERIT

B MIRTT A&

2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
68 738
(9,982) (8,528)
(313,397) =
20 2
= 6,137
= 4,204
(323,291) 2,553
55,000 43,000
(45,500) (43,372)
(830) (328)
41,356 75,125
50,026 74,425
(3,718) 10,547
83,345 66,513
6,792 6,285
86,419 83,345
86,419 83,345
ZE-XNEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

1.

50

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 December 2009 with limited liability. The registered office
of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of the Group’s principal place of business is located at
No. 28 Xinfeng Road, Xinfeng Industrial Park, Fanggian Town,
New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). Its parent and ultimate holding company
is China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (2015: Mr. Zhuang Yuejin), who is also the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts and trading of rubber and
food products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Renminbi (“RMB"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

—RE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following standards, amendments and interpretations
("new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2016. A summary of the new HKFRSs are set out below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable
(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation and

Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016

E_FAFFAZ—HIER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement

ERAFITREEITERVBREE
A (TEEMBHREE]) (&

CEMEMRERNETBYBREER

AEE M AR FEMTIERMERRER
ZHAIREETTEEMBRELER:

BEMBEHE LR

A

VAR A7 78 B R A R

of Share-based Payment FE25% (BFTA) RHMDEREE2
Transactions?
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Insurance Contracts? BEEMBREED (RERE 42
F4% (BFTA)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? ERPHERMEER ST H2
FE95R
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERPHEMEER BEEEAKEE NG
(Amendments) between an Investor and its FI105 BB HEERRIMEEE
Associate or Joint Venture* ZEH R 2858 & E &
(IBETA)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BV REEL REFFA LR
Customers? %1558
HKFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 BARAMEHEEDN BEEEVERESER

F155% (BT &)

Revenue from Contracts with FISHEREREFEN
Customers? B9 I 22
HKFRS 16 Leases’ ERVBWMESEDN HE?
21657
HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative' EBEGTEBFET WETE
CEHEY)
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets BRI ERE TARFIRHIEER
for Unrealised Losses' 125% (18RI A) REFIBEE
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvement to HKFRSs ERVBERELER —ZFT—NHFRE
2014-2016 Cycle® CEHEN) ZE—NFEH
BB B WS ER
B £F JZ DS
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, 1 RZF—+tF - A — B2 &RBRNFEHRE
with earlier application permitted. ERCAIIREER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 2 RZTE—NF—A—BR2ERBNFEHE
with earlier application permitted. ERCATIREER -
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, 2 RZF-NF-A Bz &RBNFEHAR
with earlier application permitted. ERCAIIREER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 REETRABRRZERBOFEHMER
determined.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 5 RZF—+tF—-—A—Hx=ZE-—N\F—-HA—H
1 January 2018, as appropriate. (B A ) sk B FE K FE M AR

The Group is in the process of accessing the potential impact REERFF G LM REETERENE
of the above new and revised HKFRSs, upon initial application MEEARYIRERAENIEZE HER
but is not yet in a position to state whether the above new and BETETE LR E] RASHE BT B 8 B 7% & 22 )
revised HKFRSs, will have a significant impact on the Group's EEHEARNE B OLEEE RV BARREK
results of operations and financial position. EPN-Z X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fiap

BRI (F

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Bz
2.

T A A=A —ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the
new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B BIRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Bz
2.

T AES A=A —AUFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may impact the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract.

° Step 3:  Determine the transaction price.

° Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the contract.

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, HKASB issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the other new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether the other new and
revised HKFRSs, will have a significant impact on the Group's
financial performance and position.
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3.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations (the “Interpretations”) issued
by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments
are measured at their fair values at the end of each reporting
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved when the Company has power over the investee; is
exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect
its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company. owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’ cash-generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognized as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyers, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the assets net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Technical support income is recognised when the technical
support services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added in to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, using the straight line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant asset are available for
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initial
at cost, including transaction costs. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of the other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“financial assets at FVTPL"). The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEESFBEK(#F)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMI A (&)
Financial assets (Continued) PHEE (&)
Effective interest method (Continued) BEBRAEZL (B)
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for RoOBARZRATENERIIGENEMEEIN
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as B TEMFBIATHIEE R B EERER -
at FVTPL.

U

Financial assets at FVTPL 7 I FE R E 7 5l B 1 2 B 5

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial EeRMEEABEERENIREERKATER
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Ba=iE - Ao BEAZATERIERTE-
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: THEER NIBERATOBEAREESR:
o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling . HFrZAERITHRNEEMBEA X
it in the near term; or
. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of . RYITHEAR EAREERRAEEDN
identified financial instruments that the Group manages E#NeRITEAEN —FoRAEE
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term MR BATERERN 3

profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a . HAFEERRAEHSHAITANITAET
hedging instrument. o

\
/)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
"other gains and losses”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, objective evidence of impairment could include:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sales financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
thought profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. The
Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On the derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On the derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve months
of the end of the reporting period or in the normal course of
the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are expected to
be settled within twelve months of the end of the reporting
period or in the normal course of the Group’s operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,
an asset is recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

I.

i

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
companies now comprising the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the company operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi, which is the Company’s presentation currency
and the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiary of the Group. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars. The directors consider
that choosing Renminbi as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of their fair value gain
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEETHEK (&)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued) Ik (4 )

iii. Group companies iii. FHEZRE
The results and financial positions of all the companies et EREZNEE TR 2 REHEK
now comprising the Group (none of which has the RNEEMBAR (EP T EREBIRE
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have ER 2 B ) 2 EERM G R TR
a functional currency different from the presentation T HFRBE B2 E
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:
(a) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing (a) EEIAGBRUMERKRE:

rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average by WARAZBREHERBRE: K

exchange rates; and

(c) Al resulting exchange differences are recognised as (0) ﬁﬁﬁlﬁtﬂﬁﬁiZ@%%%ﬁﬁEi@
a separate component of equity. REN R

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the REARER REGINEKREFEUR
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and BRERECAHPZEHREZHMERTA
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as EEZELZBMARE AEZ - HEEFIN
hedges of such investments, are taken to owners’ equity. When ¥BE REzCHENELZEREESER
a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were REMEERGZEBERALE 2805 Kk
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated statement E1E -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition WEEBIEBELCEERATERAERAR
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the BINEBRZEEREBE WRIRTEXKRE -

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

84

(Continued)
Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(iij) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for
all its PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic
salaries predetermined by the local governments. The
state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the
entire retirement benefit obligations payable to retired
employees and the Group has no further obligations
for the actual retirement benefit payments or other
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 43 to the Group's consolidation
financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee
benefits reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to equity.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will continue to be held in
share option reserve/will be transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity, when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payment, a liability is recognised
for the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair
value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair
value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_FE—NF1T_HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEESFBEK(#F)

(Continued)

Related parties BER

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FR—FHBATER R AREERH

EH

(1) A person or entity is preparing the financial statements of (1 FRATHKERBRRASENNBHR
the Group; =

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is 20 THMATHERKEASEEBBHEZ
related to the Group if that person: M
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () EEflskkRIZESAREE
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (iy EHAXEBEERAFEN =%
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) EAAREBFXAELETRFMNE

the Group or of a parent of the Group. EEBEABMKE -

(3)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (3) ETIHEMBERLT —HEBHESKE AR
conditions applies: REEGRE:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same (i) ‘%@Eﬁiﬁﬁ BARR—SEKE -

A MEAR KRR FRNE
B AR B B E

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

IR
3l
DYID)‘

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy R EBEBRS EBEIBENT
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a HE &R KB ﬁ*f?ﬁﬁ%
member of a group of which the other entity is a SEXEZEERRIHAEE N T -
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) BERAHEBR-—F=Fz8%Ral-
party.

88 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_FE—NF1T_HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (2).

(vii) A person identified in (2)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any number of a group of which is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group's parent.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction

when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairment arises where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the reporting period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment of the
carrying amount of that asset will be performed. Triggering
events include significant adverse changes in the market
value of an asset, changes in the business or regulatory
environment, or certain legal events. The interpretation of such
events requires judgment from management with respect to
whether such an event has occurred. Upon the occurrence of
triggering events, the carrying amounts of non-current assets
are reviewed to assess whether their recoverable amounts
have declined below their carrying amounts. The recoverable
amount is the present value of estimated net future cash flows
which the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal. Where
the recoverable amount of non-current assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5. FES AT RHE (£Z)
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill EmERE

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any AEBEFETARNEEREBRESHRE
impairment. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires ARE ECHEESREZTEGRAESE
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating FENRSELBUMNEREAR-RABE
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use FEREEEEMT R AR EAEN
calculation requires the management to estimate the future FFEERMARREERERGEMBRERUGFE
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and RIRBEMENIRE -

a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of the future cash flows.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EWMIEDSE
2016 2015
—E-RE —_T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBEF T
Financial assets: SRMEE:
Available-for-sale financial assets HEESREE 235,708 =
Held-for-trading investments RHIEBEBEKRSE 36,514 336,349
Loans and receivables (including ExkERZGE (BERE X
cash and cash equivalents) BE&EEY) 251,255 224,905
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Amortised cost B RCAR 87,852 52,467
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MBEREBEEBFERBE
and policies
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial REBEREH< HMEERZ EMBR
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and b TS AR (BEIINE R R A TFE
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk xR REERR) EERBER
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management PERRER AEENEERRERE
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial ERIREemMmSH A EAMN RS
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects KEEAEBRVBERRENEE SN
on the Group’s financial performance. 2o
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities are undertaken by management.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

(i) Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic
of China (the “"PRC”) and Hong Kong and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“"RMB"), Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. The Company’s management
do not expect the net foreign currency risk from
these activities to be significant and hence, the
Group and the Company do not presently hedge
the foreign exchange risks. The Group and
the Company periodically review liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries
to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMTIAR(£Z)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIBEREEEEREXK (£)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) shEE b (E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis iy BWREREDW

At 31 December 2016, the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk with respect
to HKD as it is the functional currencies of the
respective subsidiaries in which their business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated.

At 31 December 2016, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2015: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit for the year and total equity would have
been approximately RMB1,548,000 (2015:
RMB1,502,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on USD-denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.

Interest rate risk

(i)

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rate relates primarily to its bank
deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts. Interest-bearing bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts at floating rates expose the
Group to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. S@MIA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BMERMREEEEREE (£&)

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mEEE (E)

Interest rate risk (Continued) FI&Em b (&)

(i) Sensitivity analysis iy BWREREDM
At 31 December 2016, if interest rates at the date RZEBE—R"F+ZA=+—8"
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all MR &B 2 FE EFHTEI100
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for EERMAT A Eh S i T~
the year would decrease/increase by RMB390,000 ARz FEBNBE TR L
(2015: RMB295,000). This is mainly attributable to F# AR #390,000L (=2 —H
the Group's exposure as result of increase/decrease F: AR¥295,000)  /HEE
interest expense on bank borrowings and bank HRIBITERRBITEZ 2 A
overdrafts net off with interest income from bank X R B RITERFE WA
deposits. ZEBEENRLEEZAER

[\ Bgx T B o

Other price risk BB 1 /7 bz

() Exposure to other price risk () EZHEMEERR
The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly AEEFZFRAKRE @R
through its investment. The Group currently EERRR NEBRREIT RS
does not have a hedging policy in respect of the B[R 2 BRI o hAN - AR E
risk exposure. In addition, the management of EEESERERRERBRERES
the Group would monitor the price risk and will EREREAEBER-
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BWREREDHT
The sensitivity analysis has been determined based BRRE » T Th iR 5 AR A A £
on the exposure to price risk of held-for-trading ZHEIEBEBERE ZERRAREE -
investments at the end of the reporting period. WMIFIEFEBREZER EA T
If the prices of the held-for-trading investments HK10% BlEHE—T— X "F+=
had been 10% higher/lower, profit for the A=+—BLFE2&F#E
year ended 31 December 2016 would increase/ m/m A 49 A R 3,049,000
decrease by approximately RMB3,049,000 (2015: —E—hF: ARM28,085,000
RMB28,085,000). If the prices of available-for-sale ) o MAHHESRMIEE 2B
financial assets had been 10% higher/lower, profit/ BER/THI0% BIHE—-ZF
other comprehensive income for the year ended —~"FE+ZA=+—HLFEZ
31 December 2016 would increase/decrease by St E 2 TR A #8800,
approximately RMB23,571,000. L# AR #23,571,0007T ©
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMTIAR(£Z)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIBEREEEEREXK (£)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
Credit risk 1= EE R

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade receivables included in the consolidated statements
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial
assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the
trade receivables from the five largest customers as at
31 December 2016 represented 49% (2015: 52%) of
total trade receivables, while 14% (2015: 17%) of the
total trade receivables were due from the largest single
customer. It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are international and
state-owned banks with good reputation.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMIA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIKEREEEEREXK (£)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The Group did not has available unutilised banking

facilities for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on
the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial
liabilities including interest that will accrue to those
liabilities except where the Group are entitled and intends
to repay the liability before its maturity.

HEEL R (F)
HE-_Z—"Fk-_ZT—RF+=-A
=+t BHLEEE AEBEWEASHHRE
BARITEE -

TRAMINAAEEAFTESHAR
MR T AR BIBER - ZRBRIFEARRER
EREEANIREH BEZEEE
MEFHE (FEEEREEREDH
ABEERIN)

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand BEEmE TmiRiTEERRE R HE
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless —FRITEEEN I BBRE

of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights within one year after the reporting date.
The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWMIA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BMERAMREEEEREE (£)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REEZEE ()
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB-R"E+=ZH=+—8H
Weighted
average On demand Total Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
Y EEXRS AERRS
BRA= SR-F -4k REBE BEHAE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT

Non-derivative financial liabilities FITESRAE
Trade payables BB SHE - 39,744 - 39,744 39,744
Accruals and other payables FEEH B M I H At e 50R - 9,108 - 9,108 9,108
Bank borrowings RITfER 4.57 39,690 - 39,690 39,000
88,542 - 88,542 87,852
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RFE+=-HA=+-—H
Weighted
average On demand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
T EEK AURFE
ERAE PR—F —FUE mERBE REAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITESRAR
Trade payables BB SHE - 12,239 - 12,239 12,239
Accruals and other payables B M R E R A - 10,728 - 10,728 10,728
Bank borrowings RITIER 4.9 29,953 - 29,953 29,500

52,920 = 52,920 52,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

(i)  the fair value of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives;

(iii)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

1 Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
and financial institution for identical assets or
liabilities;

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

RESENNEESE A

6.
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SREERSBEBZATEIRMN
TEE:

() AABEERR G RRER R
HTSEENSRAERSBA
8 (BIEFETR) DHRISE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
' E—NFL A= —HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ®@MIA(£Z)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) ERWMIBEZAFE(E

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the RGEEHBRRXERZZ A FHEE

consolidated statement of financial position (%)

(Continued)

At 31 December 2016 R-E—XR"F+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
#& Bl — & BI= wA= &t

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR®TR

Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale AitHESMEE
financial assets 235,708 - - 235,708
Held-for-trading investments 3 {EEE R E 36,514 - - 36,514
At 31 December 2015 R=ZZB—HEF+=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HAl— FAl= F®AI= A%
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETRT ARETT
Financial assets EWMEE
Held-for-trading investments 35 {EE &K E 336,349 = = 336,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMTIARA(£Z)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) ERMIBEZAFE(E
(Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBRRXERZ A FHEIE
consolidated statement of financial position (#)
(Continued)
Financial assets/ Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/valuation
Financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  technique(s) and key input(s)
SREE/CRER RTFIEHNATLE AVESER ATPEIENEE GEFEIRIEHALE
31/12/16 31/12/15

—AE+ZA=Z+-B -—-HEF+-A=+-H

1) Held for trading Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
Investments RMB36,416,000 RMB336,114,000
RIFEERE THRAES THRAES H A= EERTISBRNEAE-
AR #36,416,0007C AR #336,114,0007C
Unlisted investment Unlisted investment Quoted price from financial institution
RMB98,000 RMB235,000
FLEMRE FEmRE ESRKELRE
AR #98,0007T AR#235,0007C
2)  Available-for-sale Unlisted equity investments - Level 1 Based on portfolio market price quoted from
financial assets RMB235,708,000 financial institution
AHHESRHEE FETRARE - ARl — RECBEBMRZAATE
AR #235,708,0007T
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RRAREFRE RENBRERANIRE
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities carried HAAFENCREERSHEBED
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BREEHEAAFEREE-

approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B BIRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-T—AF+-A=+—HIFE

7.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2015.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings and bank overdrafts) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital and reserves. The directors of the Company review
the capital structure on a continuous basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the issuance of new shares as well as the addition of
new borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as
follows:

EXERER

ARBERLAR URRARENEES
Be IS IS - FIBS N BB (L (R E B s

- ARRFMEBER- A -F—5

FHE AEEEER EW%HT“ g

AEBEZEARBREER (BRRITERK
FARTTIBE ) A RAE R T%*ﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁéﬁé(@
HREBTEARER) ARAEZE TR
NEARB RN —HMO EFEEE
ARARAREARBRR AEBHREES
ZERBEBBETHRINEET FTHEE
BEANEE-

BEXBELR
R-E—AER-F-RE+-A=T—8
MEARRELENT

Debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

2016 2015
—E-RE —RHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
B 39,000 29,500
W AR KR 493,845 561,889
BEARBELE 7.9% 5.3%
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

Information reported to the Directors being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows:

(i)  the manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products
used in automotive interior decoration parts and other
parts; and

(i) the supply and procurement operation segment including
trading of rubber, food products and garment accessories.

Segment revenue and results

Supply and
procurement operation

HERRBLE

2016 2015
ZE-AE —T-IF
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR

7 BE
MEXE(Z2RERRE)ERAIEE
BREFEDMBRENER ZEMTEEmM
iR AR E AR I o

AEBENKERAIZH|MD BT
() HERHEERRAERE R M
PHESHMER: &

(i HERKRBLES M (BEE
ELDD &WZ‘?@E#) °

%

mg
i

DEHBAREE

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven
fabric products Total
HERKE
BHAEM &t
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-XE ZZ-1F ZB-R"E Z—T-h%f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT AR%TR ARETH

195,012 160,036 207,824 195,804

(3,847) 11,118 (1,775) 14,638

Segment revenue: pak:i NS
Sales to external customers WETIEER 12,812 35,768
Segment results NHEEE 2,072 3,520
Unallocated corporate 7l NN

income
Unallocated corporate AABERAIAZ

expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations &% (E18) /&7
Finance costs BEKK

(Loss)/profit before tax BRER (BE) /8F

RESENNEESE A

191 183,179

(132,753) (28,036)

(134,337) 169,781
(1,596) (1,775)

(135,933) 168,006




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fale)

PR R EE (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-T—AF+-A=+—HIFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent the profit from each segment without allocation of
interest income, gain on held-for-trading investments, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets, impairment loss recognised on goodwill and
central operating expenses including staff costs, finance costs
and income tax expense. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision marker for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

Supply and

8.

procurement operation

HEREBELE
2016 2015
—B-XE Z—Z-1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NPEE 59,550 55,846
Unallocated corporate assets kA B AR EE
Total assets EELE
LIABILITIES =0
Segment liabilities AHER 5,464 1,746

Unallocated corporate liabilities &2 B A & & f&

Total liabilities AEEE
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DEWBARKEE (&)

WA F23E D BUYATIREINBEF BN -
BHE-_ZT—R"FRZZ—AF+ZA=1+—
HIEFE I &5 F U A -

REDHWEARREARNKE S BORMER -
DHEEERIEDEFNERA -BIEES

1RO 7 Mok - B A ]2 M aE - T g
ECHAEY REGE BERRZAES

BRPRTHRER (BHREINA BEX
RRFIEBFS) MR T &2 8B H o 1t
TR EERERKE RS BB R KL
DEERREERE-

THEERERE

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven

fabric products Total
HERWHE
EGhER CL
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE ZZ-1F ZEBE-RE ZT-hf
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR%Trn ARETR
272,664 256,061 332,214 311,907
287,312 341,282
619,526 653,189
84,283 52,355 89,747 54,101
35,934 37,199
125,681 91,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segment other
than corporate financial assets including available-for-
sale financial assets, held-for-trading investments and
corporate cash and bank balance. Goodwill is allocated
to supply and procurement segments as described in
Note 23.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate financial liabilities including derivative
financial liability, deferred tax liabilities and accruals
and other payables.

Other segment information

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other segment

information:
Supply and
procurement operation
HERRBLE
2016 2015
—-»E —T-IF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETR
Capital expenditure BARX - =
Depreciation of property, nE - BEREBRE
plant and equipment 1 1

Amortisation of prepaid land  TE {7 £ F & F AR 3
lease payments - =

Inventories written off FEMH = =
Impairment loss recognised ~ StEME 5 ERERE

on trade receivables REER = =
Impairment loss recognised ~ HEERANREEESE

on goodwill 6,829 16,239

4

’;}%B g8 (7
PBEERAME ()
RERSBRARRS BHHRER:

w n

- KRorzREE(ERAUHLERE.
%f’ﬁéﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ@&fﬁﬁ* )
SNvFTBEEBADREA 2,08 B
ﬁDMﬁ:“tZSﬁﬁ%}I‘t'ﬁ%]’]ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&%
Boabe

- KRoarzReE(BRTLESRAE-
BEERBEBEAREAERREME
NHB)IN ERBEHDEEA 2R

D EB

Hitb > ZE ¥
AT RAKENEMD BBEH D :

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven

fabric products Total
HERHE
EHHER CE

2016 2015 2016 2015

-AE —F-hF ZB-Af _—F-IF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TR ARKTRH

9,982 8,528 9,982 8,528
5,794 4,996 5,795 4,997
73 73 73 73
327 200 327 200
4,130 43 4,130 43
= = 6,829 16,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F— A NFt+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major products and services

Information about the Group’s major products is set out in
Note 9.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below.

8. IWEHR (&)
RETEERRBRBHERA

ERASEIEEMMNERENHEI -

HEER

AREBENEEMHHMNPEREE-

UTFRARERBIINBEFNBARER
ZEWEEDWIIERDEENER -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets*

REIMBEFE KA ERBEE*
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—RE el —E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T ARBT ARET T
The PRC H 207,824 175,823 55,890 51,856
Hong Kong B - 17,778 = 8
Overseas (Note) JEIN ([T aE) - 2,203 = =
207,824 195,804 55,890 51,864

Note: The Group's overseas customers including but not limited to
customers in Bangladesh and Taiwan.

& Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, goodwill and
available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue generated
from one (2015: one) customer of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB48,400,000 (2015: RMB53,106,000) has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue. No other single customer contributed 10% or more to
the Group’s revenue for both years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.
Revenue from major customer, amounted to 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue, is set out below:
Customer A BEA

9. REVENUE
The Group's revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric
products used in automotive interior decoration parts and other
parts, rubber, food products and garment accessories.
An analysis of revenue is as follows:
Nonwoven fabric for use in AR RERNES M

automobiles

— Sales of automotive floor carpets —AEMBAHE
— Sales of other automotive parts —HM A BERENHE
Sales of rubber BBRHE
Sales of garment accessories RIXEE R S5 &
Sales of food products RmigE

RESENNEESE A

8.

DEBE R (£E)

EBRTERFMESR
HE_Z—RNE+-A=+t—BILEE &
AEB—ZEP (ZE—RE:—R)EAEN
W A4 AR #48,400,0007T (ZZE—FHF: A
R #53,106,00070) % B (5 A~ &£ B 42 W A &8
B10% BE-_FT—A"FER=-_FT—HF+=
A=+—HALMEFE SMEELMHE—FF
EAREBEHWA10% A £ o

IT2XPHRA (BEAREEKAE10% 3 A
B)#5ImT

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBET T
48,400 53,106

WA

AEBEBRAERRTEAMEREMEBI DN
BEHTER BB RAMKKEHHEE-

WAR S ATEAE -
2016 2015
= —T—hf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT
114,145 96,529
80,867 63,507
11,102 22,057
- 13,711
1,710 -
207,824 195,804




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

10. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES

2016 2015
—E—XRF —TET—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR T T
Interest income FILEHA 68 738
Consultancy fee income FEEDE & O - 423
(Loss)/gain on held-for-trading RHERERAZ (B1R) e
investments (44,190) 178,732
Rental income 2 ON 119 16
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ESREE NERR
financial assets (77,689) -
Others it 3,295 3,797
(118,397) 183,706
11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 11. ®& (FB) &F
The Group's (loss)/profit from operations is stated after AREBHNKE (BE) N2 HB T &
charging the following: g :
2016 2015
ZE-ARF el S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBEF T
Auditors’ remuneration 12 85 B & 964 964
Amortisation of prepaid land lease RS £ 20 1 B SRR B 8
payments 73 73
Depreciation of property, plant and WE BE REETTE
equipment 5,795 4,997
Operating lease rentals in respect of FREENRNEEHERA
rented premises 1,673 956
Staff costs including directors’ BT (BIEERHM)
remuneration:
— Salaries and other benefits —# e REMER 13,406 11,228
— Retirement benefits scheme —RRAE A G &I
contributions 3,010 2,760
Cost of inventories recognised as ERRHERANTFERAK
cost of sales 180,814 142,856
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEMR  BERREEHR
and equipment 68 24
Inventories written off & E 327 200
Impairment loss recognised on trade ?¢§H&%’%$ﬁl§ﬁ§g{i -
receivables %ﬁiii A S S E R 4,130 43
Impairment loss recognised on B8 R = n AR MRS B
amount due from an associate RERE (W)
(Note 1) - 3,169
Impairment loss recognised on sEE B R R EER (A1)
goodwill (Note 1) 6,829 16,239
Research and development e KRB (Mat2)
expenditure (Note 2) 7,687 7253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRERMEE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B —EFE—NF+-_A=+—HIFZF

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 11.
(Continued)
Note:
1. Impairment loss recognised on amount due from an associate

and goodwill included in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were amounted to approximately
RMBNil and RMB6,829,000 respectively (2015: RMB3,169,000 and

RMB16,239,000 respectively).

2. The amounts included in cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB7,687,000 (2015:

RMB7,232,000).

12. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts

RESENNEESE A

12.

ERAFABRBEN
RITEFHFEER
RITEXWHEEM

e (BR) &R (&)

Hiet -

1. HERBEARRBEREEERNREEIE
HFABE_TE—RNE+_A=+—HLEE
MITHAS SEINOARBETLRAR
¥6,829,000t (ZE—HF:HRARARK
3,169,000t & A K #16,239,0007T ) °

2. BE_Z—"F+-_A=+—BLEFEERAKE
RIHEKANES BN R ARY7,687,0007T (=
T—hF: AR¥7,232,0007T) °

il & B A

2016 2015
—NE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
1,596 1,705

- 70

1,596 1,775




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FISHRX
2016 2015
—E-XF —_T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Current tax B HA B 18
Hong Kong BB 32,222 384
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PRI EREN
(TREMEE]) 1,634 1,459
33,856 1,843
Overprovision for in previous BEFEBERE
years
PRC EIT PR EMRFR (351) (1,040)
Deferred tax EERE
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated (5t AN) kG aEsEM
statement of profit or loss and FHEKEF
other comprehensive income (35,858) 35,226
(2,353) 36,029
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BEREHEIEBHRARHS ([XBAER
and British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to REESBRMNIER AEBRAEEE N
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI. EEHER RS HASMNTMEMEH-
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BHE_ZT-—RER_F—FAF+_A=+—
assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2016 and HIEFE FBNEHIEMG ERY G N
2015. 16.5% st & -
PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on estimated REPEMSHBREBERTEDN 2B RHE
taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of the Group BIER REEETHEEENAEEMNF
with certain tax preference, based on existing legislation, B B B8 2 Bl TR B St IE R B A - LAE A
interpretation and practice in respect thereof. MEFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fiap

BRI (F

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-—F—AF+-A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC
subsidiary is 25%.

Pursuant to PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, an innovative
and high-end technology enterprise may enjoy a preferential
enterprise income tax rate of 15% ("“IHT Enterprise Rate”).
On 6 July 2015, Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration
Co., Ltd. ("Joystar Wuxi”), a subsidiary of the Company,
obtained the Certificate of Innovative and High-end Technology
Enterprise with validity period of three year and also enjoyed
the IHT Enterprise Rate. Consequently, the applicable income
tax rate of Joystar Wuxi for the year ended 31 December 2016
is 15% (2015: 15%).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the

profit before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax
rate is as follows:

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax
rate of 25% (2015: 25%) FHHE (

Tax effect of expenses that are not ] H R B 2 A R 7 52
deductible and temporary differences ERER8

Tax effect of income that are not taxable HZAFH WA NTE R

Over provision in previous years BEFEREREE

Tax effect of tax preferential period fﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]mi‘k%;

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries KB A &G K1 &

S B

Income tax expense

Under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or which have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC but whose relevant income is not effectively connected
with the establishment or a place of business in the PRC,
will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless
reduced by treaty) on various types of passive income such as
dividends derived from sources within the PRC.

RESENNEESE A

BREAT (E51R) A

ERRDEMSHTE25%
—T—RF: 25%)

13. FiEBiRAX (&)

REBHBECERSHARD K
TENEARNERTEEERS
25% °

ERCAEBER
HEA

BIBERBECEMRSHRE SRS ET=E
ELEMBHERHRER15% ([SHF M
EWE]) - ARRAWBRARIGE (&) A
$Wﬁfﬁ1¢*ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂ(ﬂ‘“5(ﬂ%)) n=
T-HAFE+AANBREBERHAE=FE2aH
&mm%u =t I;ﬁm%ﬁ%ﬁiijmiﬁ‘R%f’
At 62 (EH)RBE_FT—~F+=A
S+ RLEEZERME %Ft < 215% (=
T—FH&F:15%) °

P 15 754 8 32 B2 BR A5 BT M 3R A R B 42 PR 15
BR KA ERBOERET

2016 2015
—E—XF —ZE—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
(135,933) 168,006
(33,983) 42,001
20,922 13,195
17) (1,190)
(351) (1,040)
2 (973)
11,076 (15,964)
(2,353) 36,029

BREFHE B_TTN\F-HA—-—BE L
FEPERNIKETEREGEEEHE RE
FERYAETERALE R EEHK
ABER EWIFFEPBEK T RAEFTBRBELL
WHERZFERER BARZREBHK

A (RR AP EZ BB ) RFEE10% (FRIFZ
AR ) BT TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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PR R EE (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

13.

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

According to the notice Caishui 2008 No. 1 released by
the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of
Taxation, distributions of the pre-2008 retained profits of a
foreign-invested enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008 or
after are exempt from corporate income tax. Accordingly, the
retained profits as at 31 December 2007 in the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries will not be subject to 10% withholding tax on
future distributions.

According to the EIT law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10%
withholding income tax will be imposed on dividend relating to
profits earned by the companies established in the PRC in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For
investors incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25%
of equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential rate
of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly held
by an investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong.
At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to
such profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB84,261,000 (2015: RMB91,202,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB133,580,000 (2015: profit approximately
RMB131,977,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,762,503,189 (2015: 1,506,626,630) in
issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, diluted
(loss)/earnings per share are the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as the Company did not have any dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.
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13.

14.

FrigBipx (&)

RIBEFRA LB KB R % 2 7 1200858
RBA IEARECRE_TTNFR R
AR EED IR BT NFRZREB &N -
] R A D R PTIS A o B B R 2R
EHEDIRE AEEZHEMNBARR _-F
TLFEFT A=+ —BZRBERMNBBEAEH
M10% 2 TEIRH -

BECEMSHE A_SEENF—HF—H
BOEBEHREPERYIMNARBE_ETNE
J& £ R BRER /9 a5 A 2 A BB AMNIR R B AR B
W10% BEMAMED - SR EEBTME L
BRFEZETEHAFEDL25% KENKE
E BEBS%MEERE - AR AEEPE
WEARYHB —EEEETMR IR EE
RATIEERFE  WMAEBEIE% HEFEH X
BB R _E—X"E+=_A=+—8"
A E AR h R BB A R BEER A 2 S A
#IANR®E84,261,000c (ZE—HF: AR
91,202,0007T ) &) Bq I 2 88 i /E L IR E B 18
B NARNEEREAZERE=8%E 2
i MERRF ZRMRAIE TR0 A &% 2k #%
@o

SR (BB BF

SRERN (FE) 2R
ERERAEESENEEDRERR AR
BEAEEEEEEHARE133,580,0007T
—E—RF mMHAKRE131,977,000
TIRERNBERTHNETBER Z NEFY
2 51,762,503,189 (& — \ &F:
1,506,626,6300% ) st E5H »

EREBE(F5E8) 2R
HRARAREBEE_Z—A"EK_T—1F
+ A=t RLFEVTETAESTEEYT
B BWEEZE-—R"EFERT—HF+=
A=+—BLEE SREE (BB &
FEGRER (EEB) /BFMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBRERMEE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
' E—NFL A=+ —HIFFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the Section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordnance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

15. EE BESTHRAEBRESHMH

BIEEB RN BHEHFE383() ER AR (KEE
EREER) BHIFE2Ep0 T ¢

Salaries and Retirement benefit
Fees allowances scheme contributions Total
e FERME BRER G HHER &t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-Xf CE-1% ZEB-X§f CE-1% ZB-RE C-Z-1nF ZB-RE C-Z-nf
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTn AR®TR ARETT AR%Trn AR%ETr AR¥Tx ARETx
Name of director 32
Executive directors HITEE
Zhuang Yuejin (Note (3)) HRE (Wite) 381 362 - - - - 381 362
Wong Ho Yin (Note (b)) BER(WH D) - - 1,480 1,213 15 14 1,495 1,27
Xiao Suni 3 102 96 = = = = 102 9%
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Feng Xueben (resigned on BEX
5 June 2015) (R=Z-RE ARARE) - 21 - - - - - 2
Mak Wai Ho RER 102 9% - - - - 102 9%
Sung Kwan Wun (retired on 26 May 2016) K& %
(/‘A:g*ﬁﬁ
AAZTABRE) 22 48 = = = = 22 48
Ng Li La Adeline (appointed on RAP(R-F-1%
4 September 2015) NAMBEZF) 81 25 - - - - 81 25
Zhu Chun Yan (appointed on FER(RZZ-RF
2 September 2016) NAZREZf) 27 - - - - > 27 =
715 648 1,480 1,213 15 14 2,210 1,875
Note: Bst -

(a) Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

(b) Mr. Wong Ho Yin is also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

RESENNEESE A

(@) HRELETAADAMEFRITHAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and chief
executive as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)

15. EE RETRAEBREEFHMH
(%)
HE_ZT-—RERZT—AF+A=1+—
BLEFR - AREREAEZRESITERA
BXNMEERBBEAL RS MARIMA
AEEENRBAFERBEREE - RBEE=
AR RAFT-HA=1t—HLF
B -HEEEHRAFNERETAMEN R
B

ERERE(TREEH)OMENFUT

fell within the following band: HE X
Number of individuals
AE
2016 2015
—E-XF —_T-hF
Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to T Z= AR #895,0007T
approximately HK$1,000,000) (FZ5 52 491,000,0007% 7T ) 3 3

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2015: 2) directors, details of whose remuneration
set out in Note 15 above. The emoluments of the remaining 3
(2015: 3) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances HEAFH & FoERL
Retirement benefits scheme

contributions EORAE FIFT B 5%
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16. T EEEMEEE
AEERAEERNTNSESHMATBIER
Z(ZE—RHE WME)EE Mo HBEHY
R EXHEIS B T=28SFMAL (=
T-FE:ZH)NEMENNT:

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

410 394

132 127

542 521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,000,000)

Senior management of the Group

The number of the senior management of the Group are within
the following band:

Nil to RMB895,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,000,000)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the non-executive
director, highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the non-executive director and highest paid employees
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

17. DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payments of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

RESENNEESE A

Tz AR#¥895,0007T
(8% 7 491,000,000 7T )

T % AR¥895,0007T
(8% 491,000,000 7T )

16. T BREMEER (&)

17.

BN T A TEENR :
Number of individuals
A
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—AREF
3 3

rEESREERE
AEBRRERBZABNFUATEHER:

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—AEF
1 1

HE-_ZT—"FER_Z—AF+-_A=+—
BEFERN ASERERAFNTES &
SHMEEINME EAREMARNEH
FMAREBE RO R ERBERME-
HE_ZT—R"FrR_ZFT—RF+_A=+-—
BEFERN BEFNTESRER ISR
EREXRERETAHE -

iR E
EETEERBE_Z—RF+_HA=+—
BUEFERNEMRS (ZE—RF £)-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B RRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
' E—NFL A= —HIFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ -BERR®E

Furniture
Plant and Motor and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures  improvement in progress Total
BF BERER RE BRREE HENELEHE ERIR &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  AR¥Tn  AR®Tn AR%®Tr AR%Tr AR%TT AR¥Tx
Cost B
At 1 January 2015 ik Rl =| 10,067 56,843 2,335 1,116 2,675 - 73,036
Additions NE = 8,396 = 33 99 - 8,528
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENRERE - - - - - - -
Transfer from construction in progress BEEERTE - - - - - - -
Disposals HE - (63) - (115) - = (178)
Transfer to investment property BREEZRENE - - - - - - -
Exchange alignment B RE - - - 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2015 and RZF-RF+=A
1 January 2016 =+-BER
—E-x"¥-8-H 10,067 65,176 2,335 1,036 2,774 - 81,388
Additions HE = 6,156 2413 1,190 g 23 9,982
Disposals HE - - (354 - - = (354)
Exchange alignment EXA% = - - 3 _ _ 3
At 31 December 2016 RZIZ-—RF
+=-A=1+-A 10,067 71,332 4,394 2,229 2,774 223 91,019
Accumulated depreciation RHAFERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 RZF-HF—A—H 3,171 19,977 1,482 889 1,856 - 27,375
Charge for the year FEXH 309 4,340 181 9% 71 = 4,997
Disposals HE - (48) - (104) - = (152)
Exchange alignment EHA% - - - 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2015 and K-ZE-A%+=A
1 January 2016 =+-Bk
“Z-"%¥-A-H 3,480 24,269 1,663 883 1,927 - 32,222
Charge for the year FEIMH 302 4,996 267 158 72 = 5,795
Disposals HE - - (266) - = - (266)
Exchange alignment XA - - - 3 - - 3
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+=A
Sr=[ 3,782 29,265 1,664 1,044 1,999 - 37,754
Net book value RHFE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RE+=A
=t-8 6,285 42,067 2,730 1,185 775 223 53,265
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+ZA
=t+-H 6,587 40,907 672 153 847 - 49,166
At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of buildings R-E—XE+-_A=+—H A&EEEH

of the Group pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB6,285,000 (2015:

BRAEEN A ARYEG6,285000c (ZE—HA
F: AR¥6,587,00000) WEFIEAERTT

RMB6,587,000). (2 IR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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PR R AL (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value
Hong Kong BB

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’'s listed
available-for-sale equity investments were individually
determined to be impaired on the basis of a material decline in
their fair value below cost and adverse changes in the market
in which these investees operated which indicated that the
cost of the Group's investment in them may not be recovered.
Impairment losses of RMB77,689,000 on these investments
were recognised in profit or loss.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Current assets mENE E
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Analysed for reporting purposes as:

At the beginning of the year R E 4]
Amortisation for the year FEHH

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent payment
for land use rights outside Hong Kong under medium term
leases.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of prepaid land
lease payments pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB2,698,000 (2015:
RMB2,771,000).

RESENNEESE A

FELEMBRAKRE WAV E

9. THHESTHMIRE

2016 2015
—B-RE —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBTT
235,708 -

RZE—RE+-_A=+—8B K&EBzE
T £ Al 4 AR AN IR & (R Bl E R IRE
EBEEEEAEATEABTREEMAK AR
ZEWREERCEME TS LR TF &
B HBETRAEERZEERB IR ERAT
A E - ERIBE N X EIREERR
EEE ARK77,689,0007T

20. A LA ERE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
73 73

2,625 2,698
2,698 2,771

MIBEMS 2O

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
2,771 2,844
(73) (73)

2,698 2,771

REEWBENDEEFIRERREES HE
WAET B IAIMNG R #) T30 B (50 -

R-E—RNE+_A=+—8 REFHEELH
EEEHNEARMK2698,000 (== —H
F: AR®2,771,00000) WIEN LB E R
BERHEBITEROER R -
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REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

21. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2016 were as follows:

Nominal

value of

issued and

fully paid

ordinary

Place of shares/Issued

incorporation/ and paid up/

registration registered

Name of Company and operation capital

BRARME

EER2E

B/ BRTR

EMRY BER  #R/ER

NAEH REE®E N

Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior British Virgin usD1

Decoration Limited Islands (“BVI")
ERARRHS (E
([REB#ER
REEE])

Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts BVI UusD1

Limited REHERRES 17T

Joystar International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,170,177
Limited

BRERKRREER LA 0 1,170,177

Joystar China Investment Hong Kong HK$1
Limited

REFEARERRAA B BT

Joystar Wuxi PRC UsD7,477,172

a2 (#$5) FE 7,477,172 T
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21. B A BN FHAE R

R-E—RFE+_A=+—"H B@ARA
WEBARRMFEEHINMT :

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company  Principal activities

EfEARDE
BRI TEER
Direct Indirect

HiE i 5

100% - Investment holding
REEKR

100% - Investment holding
BREZER

- 100% Trading of nonwoven fabric
products used in automotive
interior decoration parts and
other parts

BEANAENSY R
HihBoNESHHER

- 100% Trading of rubber
EERE

- 100% Manufacturing of nonwoven fabric
products used in automotive
interior decoration parts and
other parts

BERRAENMER
HithBoNEHHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRME (A

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

21. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 21. B A RIMNEFEMAER (&)
(Continued)
Nominal
value of
issued and
fully paid
ordinary
Place of shares/Issued
incorporation/ and paid up/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name of Company and operation capital to the Company  Principal activities
BRARME
EERZE
B/ BRTR
MR R B ER AT
NRBB REEME &N EZEAL TEXY
Direct  Indirect
B =
Link Excellent Limited BVI UsD50,000 100% - Investment holding
HE#BRES 50,000 REZR
Sinogate Energy Limited BVI usD1 - 100% Investment holding
B BER B R A F REBERRES (B REER
Splendid Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Trading of rubber
BMERLE E 17T BEBRE
BRES (LB)ERLAE PRC USD600,000 - 100% Trading of rubber
h 600,000% 7T BEEKE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the FREINEERRBEATEENEELEER
opinion of directors, principally attached the results or assets KEAZENAEENB AR -EERAM
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in to FIHEMMBARMFBEESERBNRITR -

opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.
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REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_FE—NF1T_HA=+—HIFE

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an associate
— Unlisted

Share of post-acquisition loss and
other comprehensive income, net of
dividends received
— Unlisted

—3EEm

— L

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had interest in the
following associate:

Nominal value of
issued and fully paid
ordinary shares/
Issued and paid up/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name of Company and operation

BRTRBELER

EMRY BRE ZHEHE/CRETRE

INGIES: REEMY B/ EmEA
BN BERAA PRC USD4,100,000 (2015:
H UsD4,100,000)

4,100,000 E 7T

(Z2—AF:

4,100,000 %7T)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

Interest in an associate is classified into the Group's reportable
segment of manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products.

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate is
set out below.
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22, ABEQNTINES

2015
—E—T&E
RMB’000
AR¥TT

NN OF3 S 03N

10,206

EEEERERREBEEEA
(RS WS

(10,206)

R-_E—RER-_ZE—RHF+-_A=+—8"
REBR T E R R EAER

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

ARARAEGBEEOL TBEHR

2016 2015
—-A~E —ZT-1F
40% 40% Manufacturing of polyester fibers

SUEREEGE

X WNCIDEE SR SN
B8R o

HEHANBEE

REE RRINER DD BEARSEN RS M
EmfNREREENZSmMO o

A& ERBNMBEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Current assets MENE E
Non-current assets FERBEE
Current liabilities mEBAE
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Revenue L @N

Loss for the year FEEE

Other comprehensive loss for the year FEHEMEZEEE
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEEERESE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

(Net liabilities)/net assets of the
associate attributable to owners of
the associate

Proportion of the Group's
ownership interest in the associate

BEQBIHEE ARGEE
(BEFE) [ BEFH

22. REE DN EINRER (&)
2015
—E-RfF
RMB'000
ARBTT

10,784

23,387

(37,010)

2015
—g-E%
RMB’000
ARET

55,009

18,124

18,124

LR HEERNRBRG S M BRRAERR
BranrmEanREENYRNAT

2015
—E—f&E
RMB’000
AR¥TT

d=W/NEI=D

(2,839)

7N & [ OB i X R BT B R B 1

40%

Carrying amount of the Group's REBREE AR ERKREE

interest in the associate

As at 31 December 2015, the accumulated share of post-
acquisition loss and other comprehensive loss, net of dividends
received, that is not yet shared to the Group is RMB1,136,000
(2014: nil).

RESENNEESE A

R-EBE—FRE+_A=+—B KXEEHK

Bz RtEEKBEEBEEREMEZEER

(FHBREWEmRE) B ARY1,136,0007T
T OEE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL 23. B8
RMB'000
AREBTT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 R-—E—RF—HA—H 51,099
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries o E B A A R ¥ (29,252)
Exchange alignment bE 3 2 1,276
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+_A=+—HEK
—E-R¥—H—H 23,123
Exchange alignment bE 3 & 1,592
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XF+=ZA=+—H 24,715
Accumulated impairment losses: 2 HEEE:
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—HF—H -
Impairment loss B EE 16,239
Exchange alignment HE 38 (402)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZEBE—RF+_A=+—HEK
—E-R¥—-H—H 15,837
Impairment loss BEEE 6,829
Exchange alignment ME W E B 1,592
24,258
Carrying amount: FREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-—RE+ZA=+—H 457
At 31 December 2015 RZTE—RAF+=-A=+—H 7,286

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating
units

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes
to the cash-generating units of trading of rubber business
by Sinogate Energy Limited and its subsidiaries (“Sinogate
Energy Group”), which is classified into the Group's reportable
segment of supply and procurement operation.
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TEREEREREELEN

RETRENS HECESEEPHER
ERARREMBAR ([TEERER])
MEERBEBNRSELSEM HORE
AEBNHERRBELT 2RO -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRERMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL (Continued)

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to the cash-generating units as
follows:

Sinogate Energy Group

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
has been determined based on a value in use calculations
which use cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by the directors and valued by the professional valuer
covering a five year period, and discount rate of 16.95% (2015:
21.75%) per annum. Cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using a steady 3.00% (2015: 3.00%)
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market.

Impairment loss of approximately RMB6,829,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016 as the
business of trading of rubber products does not turnout as
previously expected, due to decrease in demand of rubber
product as a result of the more stringent and competitive
environment of the industry.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are
as follows:

Budgeted market share  Average market share in the period
immediately before the budget
period. The value assigned to the
assumption reflect post experience

Budgeted gross margin Average gross margins achieved in
the period immediately before the
budget period which reflects the
past experience

RESENNEESE A

23. BE (&)

ERREBE HENREEESIEER
CELEBM - BRAOT:

2016 2015
—B-RF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBTT
21,847 21,847

BHE-_Z— X "F+-_A=+—8Bk=Z—1
FHZA=1T—HLEFE ReEABUD
AREEBENRETREBEFTEMEE T
FRRESMIEREEBERMAMGERS
T FEHAMNYBEEAREELNBRESRE
TERGE BREAEETF1695% (=T — A
F:21.75% ) AFHERIRERENE
AEBEERE3I00% (ZT—AF:3.00%)
HEHE- EREWEBREMS 2 FHRAEE

% o

BE_T-—RNF+_A=+—HILFE B
HER A A K #6,829,0007T 2 B EEE - R
DEARREESERREFEFIN KRB
EmBRT®K BEREERBREREKER
RNUA SR AT IRER

EREEFEMRAZEERERDOT

BETHNE ERBEHNZHAF
BhEnE ERRNGEF
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&
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24. INVENTORIES

Raw materials B
Work in progress @
Finished goods 20K

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 5 W BR
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0Z290H

91 to 180 days 912 180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days HBiB365H

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally ranging from 30 to 120 days
(2015: ranging from 30 days to 120 days), depending on the
creditworthiness of customers and the existing relationship
with the Group. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing.
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2.8

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
10,343 7,389
1,920 804
12,303 7,470
24,566 15,663

25. EREZRE

2016 2015
—EB-KRE —E-1fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBETT
133,445 102,417
(269) (886)
133,176 101,531

RIESZ A BNESREOES DT (&
Mk REEH)IMT

2016 2015
—E-XF —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
89,516 60,845
26,075 13,191
4,174 24,232
13,411 3,263
133,176 101,531

AEBEHZEFNESEREEAREE RE
EEFEELANREASENRERE 5
H— RN F30E1208 (ZZ—AHF : N T30
F1208) AEERIBREBELERT 2B K
FE-BMEBANZEHEEREEETHE
B-BUREZESHHEARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of the Group's
trade receivables were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD of
approximately RMB108,038,000, RMBNil and RMB25,138,000
(2015: RMB77,766,000, RMB2,701,000 and RMB21,064,000)
respectively.

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At the beginning of year RE ]
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss recognised FIEWE 5 RIBHER
on trade receivables
Amount written off as uncollectible b G W RN S 1 o

At the end of year RER

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
RMB57,257,000 (2015: RMB45,003,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The again analysis of the trade receivables, which were past
due but not impaired, is as follows:

Overdue by 10 B

1 to 90 days 1£290H

91 to 180 days 912 180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days HBiE365H

RESENNEESE A

P B B 2 R 4 85

25. BWE % FE (£)

R-E—RFE+_A=+—HB AEENE
WESHBZEREABIIAARE BTKE
JCEHE - 2 B4 A AR %108,038,0007T * A
REEZT TN ARK25138,000c (—E—H
F: ANR#77,766,0007T - AR #2,701,000
TR AER#21,064,0007T) °

RUEZFAZBEREBEESHNT

BB R

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTT
886 3,756

= (2,913)

4,130 43
(4,747) =
269 886

R-TE—REFE+_A=+—"H BRESR
HA AR¥S7,257,000c (ZE—HF: AR
#45,003,0007T) B @ BB1E KRB - 2 F A
BRETERPHERCHENBIRES A%
ERFWERZSERFEEANERR -

ZECRBARBRERKE S XBENEEKRD
i Ul

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
33,219 35,778
8,496 5,804

= 2,859

15,542 562
57,257 45,003
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. ERE ZERHMERKRKIE
RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-nF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Trade deposits Bo5Ee 9,724 11,405
Prepayments TE IR 5,339 5,644
Other receivables (Note) H fth e W RIE (B i) 25,696 35,634
At 31 December RESR=ar=E 40,759 52,683
Note: Htat -
Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 December 2015 was an AEBR-_ZE-—HF+_A=+—HZHEMEKKREA
earnest money of approximately RMB16,750,000 to the solicitors in respect BERR-ZZE-—AFNAZ+THARHZAKES
of the possible acquisition announced on 24 August 2015. HAEMZNZRESLHARKE16,750,0007T ©
Before recognition of impairment losses, the carry amount of amount due RZT—AFHAREEER - EWREERRREN
from associate was approximate of RMB3,169,000 in 2015. During the FREEANAARKE3 169,000 - R-_SE—HER"
year 2015, the Group recognised the impairment loss on amount due from AEEREREEDNAFERRBREBFENARKE
associate of approximately RMB3,169,000 due to the carrying amounts of 3,169,0007T ' THARRBE R A ZIRE ZREE &
the investment in associate is reduced to their recoverable amounts which 2EFHRBREMERAEEZARARRETRE 2 HET
are determined by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected B REREZAIKESEE-

to be generated from the respective associate.

27. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 27. HIEEERE
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEF T
Listed securities: EmEE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LTHRAFZES 36,416 336,114
Unlisted investment: FLEHERE:
Unlisted investment outside ERBUIMEAIE ETHRE
Hong Kong 98 235
36,514 336,349
Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market bid ATFEDZEMBEMBSEANERSRHEE
prices and quoted price from financial institution. WMEMEBTE -
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTHE R

At 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BT
United States dollars ETT

At 31 December 2016, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB4,917,000 (2015: RMB18,319,000) were kept in banks
in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate.

RESENNEESE A

28.

BERRITHEER
MERARERERMNE REMREEEY
BRFERS ROIFRMAKEERITEX
FHE-GAHTRERMIRENARNES
FEEEEYARGEA VBN KANIER
HEHERET:

2016 2015
—B-RF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

86,419 83,345

RZB-—RFE+A=+—HB HLRRT
ERIRA T E¥EHE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-hHE
4,917 18,321
72,587 56,683
8,915 8,341
86,419 83,345

RIE-—RF+ZA=+—B AEEUA
REAELFHAFBRANRTZRITEH
K EANREL917,000C (ZFE—HF AR
#18,319,0007T ) - AR M Ak SN 738 5T
B S BE B I AR I % A B - 6 B R AT RRAMNE
EHERTE -

FRRBITZRESBERBRITERBNEZ
F BN EREUF B
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number Amount Amount
of shares &8 &8
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz RO#E THET THEL
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ EREE 0.1 BTz EREK
At 1 January 2015, RZZ-RF—-A—A"
31 December 2015, ZE-RFTZA
1 January 2016 and =+-8-
31 December 2016 —Z-RE-A-Bk
—E2-RF+ZA
=+—AH 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 January 2015 \—_T-hF—A—H 1,382,400,000 138,240 113,062
Issue of share upon placing REEEETRR (@) 276,480,000 27,648 21,775
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—h%+-A
1 January 2016 =+-Bk
“ZE-R"E—-H—H 1,658,880,000 165,888 134,837
Issue of share upon placing REERETRR (b) 331,776,000 33,177 28,522
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-RE
+ZA=+-H 1,990,656,000 199,065 163,359
Note: Byt -

(b)

On 9 July 2015, the Company and the placing agent entered into
the placing agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to place, on a best endeavour basis, to not less than six independent
places for up to 276,480,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.345 per
placing share. The placing was completed on 21 July 2015.

On 22 August 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into
the placing agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to place, on a best endeavour basis, to not less than six independent
places for up to 331,776,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.145 per
placing share. The placing was completed on 8 September 2016. The
net proceeds of placing approximately RMB40,526,000 was used as
general working capital.
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(a)

RZZE—AFLtANA AQAEEERE]
YRERE B RERERBIRBRMAY
EUGREERMNOMSETHNERRERS
276,480,000/ ¥7 iR 17 T T D 75 & B S A& BL
A BEFHER-_ZE—HAFtA=-+—HE
ﬁjzo

R-ZZE—RNENAZ+-B ARAFEEENR
BAIVEEHE Bt REREBERBIRBEFM
BEEENSREESRMKB0I145BTHERREER
%331,776,00088 ¥T A& (5 F T D 1 75 & B S A& R
A BEFHER=ZTE—X"FNLANBTK
EFIEM B RIBIFEL AREL0,526,0007T
ERAE—REEES-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B MR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF+_A=+—HIFE

30. RESERVES 30. %

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Note:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of capitalisation
issue and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference between
the net assets value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
reorganisation during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation implemented in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares in 2010 and represented the difference between the nominal value
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate 10% of
its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year’s losses) to the
statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC Company Law.
When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised to offset prior year's losses or to increase capital after proper
approval.

RESENNEESE A

AEERAFEREBEEEORERED
SEERABREDRES-

Afat -

B 49 % 8

REFSHEARE ARBRMNEERANES A
HEARTFARBBR  EEEZZRNVREAHE X
REBNAENN A FEEBETEREDROES -

Bt m EBRREBERNSREEZ BRETRN RR
MR EAME BT REERNBETRAREENEE -

BABRER

ARBZHABRIEMREZINBREEEFEER
BRE_ZT—THF+_A=+—HIEFESHARESF
ETRME Z ARRRAEBEZ Z/ -

OB

AEBZAHBREEENR _Z-—ZFE/HARARN
ETmMAETNER BEREEZAFHKBOHEL
AR A A E(E RS R AR IR BITIAER A
IRAEER A Z T

SR
INERE R EOEREE N LB B REME LN
BONE L - ZBE IR A BB WA N AR B0
BHEERE

EEMEE

RFEPEQBE ARBRF BRI KB AR AR
HEREEMAMN(BHKRABEFEBIER)N10% &
AEERBLERF - MZBBEEIEHREZERBRA
250% BIAEB R R EEME SN IR REFEE
R EZERES A BEREEEFEBRNEE -
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BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES

0 to 90 days 0Z90H

91 to 180 days 91£180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days BiB365H

Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10
days to 60 days (2015: ranging from 10 days to 60 days).

At 31 December 2016, trade payables are denominated in
RMB, HKD and USD of approximately RMB36,663,000, RMBNil
and RMB3,081,000 (2015: RMB11,598,000, RMBNil and
RMB641,000).

32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Advance from customers PR

Accruals of staff costs FEEH B TRA

Accruals of operating expenses R ERX

VAT payable FERIEE R

Payable to fixed assets vendor ENEEEEE A RIA
Other payables Hfh fE A KR
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31. EREZHE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
29,013 10,444
6,212 102

= 25

4,519 1,668
39,744 12,239

ENESZHENEESH KRN TF108 =608
—E—AF :NF10BZE60H) °

R—ZEBE—AR"F+_A=+—H ERNES
HEUARE BT RETLFTE 7518
BARM36,663,000 ARBZEILRA
E#¥3,081,000 (ZE—AF: AR¥
11,598,0007T * A R#EZ T k A R#641,000

JC) °

32. EStERARHEMEMNRKE

2016 2015

—E-XF —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARET T

592 2,888

3,546 3,152

1,890 1,729

= 584

298 610

2,782 1,765

9,108 10,728
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33. BANK BORROWINGS

Current
Bank loans, secured

Non-current
Bank loans, secured

Carrying amount repayable:
— within one year
— more than one year but within
two years
— more than two years but within
five years
— more than five years

Secured bank loan

Less: Amounts classified under current
liabilities
Secured bank loan that contain a
repayment on demand clause
or due within one year

Amounts classified under non-current
liabilities

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were secured by charges
over the Group’s buildings and prepaid land lease payments of

(it xhH

33. SBITER
2016 2015
—E—-ANF —E-hHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
HE
IRITE BiRE 39,000 29,500
I B
SRITE R HEF - -
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
JEBEZEEmE:
—-R—FR 39,000 29,500
— BB —FEARRERA
—BBMEERAFA
—BBRF - -
BIIFRITER 39,000 29,500
B DEARB A ENRIE
BREBREREEGERIR
—FE RN E E R A 1K
RITER
(39,000) (29,500)

DERIFRBEBEHIRE

R-ZE-—RE+ZRA=+—B RITEFKH

REBBFRIEMNLE BAARIHAR

approximately RMB6,285,000 and RMB2,698,000 respectively,
corporate guarantee provided by an independent third party.
The weighted average effective interest rate on the short-term
bank loans is 4.57% per annum.

At 31 December 2015, the bank loans were secured by charges
over the Group's buildings, prepaid land lease payments of
approximately RMB6,587,000 and RMB2,771,000 respectively,
corporate guaranteed by an independent third party. The
weighted average effective interest rate on the short-term bank
loans is 4.95% per annum.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group's
borrowings are denominated in RMB of approximately
RMB39,000,000 (2015: RMB29,500,000).

RESENNEESE A

#6,285,0007T & A R#2,698,0007T * — & 5
VEZFRENAAEREET - CHRT
ERZNEFHERFNERBEFL457E -

RZE—RFE+-_A=+—H RITEXH
AEBERBFERENTHBEZXRESRIHAR
#6,587,0007C M A R #2,771,0000T & — &
BYE=ZFREN R A EREEM LR
TERNINEFHERF R AT F495E -

R-ZEBE—-—RE+_A=+—HB Kx&EE
MAREAEZEFRZEBENAAR
39,000,000t (ZE—HF: AR
29,500,0007T) °
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34, BEBIE

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

Amortisation

AEBRAFERBEFERRBNTERIT
MBEENBEIESEHWT

tax Unrealised
on of prepaid gain on held
land lease Decelerated tax for trading
payments depreciation investment Total
AL HEEN REBEEREZ
H# 8 RERENE RERWH =h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFTT ARBTT ARBFT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HEF
—H—H 35 1,212 - 1,247
Debit to profit or loss for FAFEER
the year (35) (1,212) (33,979) (35,226)
Exchange alignment P 5 A2 - - (1,457) (1,457)
At 31 December 2015and  AZZT—HF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-HR
—TERE
—HA—8 = - (35,436) (35,436)
Credit to profit or loss FAEEEE
for the year - - 35,858 35,858
Exchange alignment P 3 A& - = (422) (422)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-—RE
+t=A=+-8” = = - -

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities BREHEEE

Note:

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMBNIl (2015: RMBNil) available for offset against future taxable profits. The
tax loss of approximately RMBNil will expire after five years from the year
of assessment they relate to. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams of the respective subsidiary of the Group which incurred
the tax loss.
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VAR 2 g 6 & B 5 IR 5 2R T 4 H A0S ST 3708
BEADT:

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBET T
= 35,436

RZB-—RF+A=+—RB AEEHEFIBFEE
HARRERBEFNOARDARBEROAREST T (=
T-AFAREER) RBEBROAREZIER
HERMAGEREFAFREN BREEBRBEBR
Y 7S % (B 46 A BT /BB 2 B SR 2R A A R AT TRORI M -
YRR ARDAREBEERRELEHREE
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. HEMEB QT

On 26 May 2015, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in Oriental Strategic
Limited and its subsidiary to a listed company in Hong Kong
(the “Purchaser”) at a consideration of HK$51,000,000, which
were satisfied in full by the issue of the ordinary shares of
the Purchaser. The disposal was completed on 16 June 2015.

Summary of the effects of disposal is as follows:

Consideration received

Consideration received

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which

control was lost

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Non-current assets
Investment properties

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

Bank overdrafts

Tax payable

Derivative financial liability

Net assets disposed of

RESENNEESE A

R-E—HFREA-_+RB AEEFIZE
EHE AR—HEBLELTAR ([EF])H
£ Oriental Strategic Limited & E [} /& 2 A1 &Y
2 0 IR AR R 55 X /B /51,000,00078 7T - LA B
TEFTNETAREHEE - HEFHEER
T—AF~NA+TABEK -HEFEHTE
BEWT:

Fr W B (B
2015
—E-FEF
RMB’000
ARET T
2 WERE 40,054
KEEHEZEEREBEIN
2015
—E-8%F
RMB’000
ARETIT
MBEE
BekReEEY 194
U E 5 HIE 15,492
EMEBEE
"EME 4,795
mBBE
B 5 & EAER FRIA (3,185)
IRITER (4,907)
RITEX (4,398)
FES R 1A (53)
PTEcmEE (334)
BEHEEETFE 7,604
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. HEME LR (&)

Gain recognised on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZERIA WS
2015
—E—-HfF
RMB'000
ARBTF T
Consideration received B U E R E 40,054
Net assets disposed of BEHREEESFE (7,604)
Release of goodwill BE S (29,252)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve HNERE B R 511
Gain recognised on disposal B/ E BRI 3,709
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZRERAFHE
2015
—E-1%F
RMB'000
ARBF T
Consideration received by cash BUKEE & R (& -
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of H BEHERe MESEEYEH (194)
Add: Bank overdrafts disposed of m:2HERITES 4,398
4,204

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases within fall due as follows:

—FRN

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its warehouse, factory and office premises. Leases
are negotiated for a range from 1 to 5 years (2015: 1 to 2
years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not
include contingent rentals. The Group does not have an option
to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.
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E_EERF(BEEEMT)

36. KREHERIE
REBEEBEREA
RBEHFR NEEY TA BN ELHEEHR
B HA R i 0 R SR R R AR S A AR T

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBET T
1,317 539
3,617 382
4,934 921

REBEFREASEREE  THERAD
ENEENOES - HHZFERN F125F
—E-LF CEME) MERBEER
REF TERAAE - AEELTERE
HEmRBEEEEECEER-
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37.

38.

39.

40.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group has no material capital commitment as 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2016, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18) and prepaid land lease payments (Note 19) of the
Group were pledged as collateral for secured banking facilities
granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2015, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18), prepaid land lease payments (Note 20) and bank
deposit (Note 28) of the Group were pledged as collateral for
secured banking facilities granted to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
are members of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages
to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of this subsidiary. The only obligation of this
subsidiary with respect to the central pension scheme is to
meet the required contributions under the scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_FT—NFF_A=+—HIFE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 41. EXBEFIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed BEEETBERRAEMITNDEENR S KRG
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group BN FARNSEBEERFERGTENUNTERKR
entered into the following material transaction with related 5o

parties during the year.

(a) Compensation of key management (a) FEEBABZHE
personnel
Compensation for key management personnel, including FEEBABZMe BEENAEE
amount paid to the Group's directors and the senior BEEREBATAESENT:

executive is as follows:

2016 2015
—EB—KE —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARBEF T
Salaries and other short-term benefits ¥ & & E b 52 HiFl| & 2,195 1,861
Employer contribution to pension scheme E{R& 5T 218 EH& 15 14
2,210 1,875
42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 42. FEFHERH

On 26 May 2015, the Group entered into sale and purchase RZEBE-—RAFRAZ+RA AKEHIJLE
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in Oriental Strategic ERpEUAM—HREE LT Z2AR(TER])
Limited and its subsidiary to a listed company in Hong Kong it & 7 Oriental Strategic Limited & E M B 2
(the “Purchaser”) at a consideration of HK$51,000,000, which 7] ,2100% f& # - X & /51,000,000 7T - T3
were satisfied in full by the issue of the ordinary shares of the BHHBTEAZEARBE - HEFER

Purchaser. The disposal was completed on 16 June 2015. —E-RERATRATEK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE=F—AFE A=t — AR
43. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

43. [BRESTE

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective
date of the Scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options
to the eligible participants, including but not limited to, any
Directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employee (whether full time
or part time) of the Group or any other person, who has
contributed to the Group. The maximum number of shares in
respect to which options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. The limit may
be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must
not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval
in general meeting. However, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. At 31 December
2015, the total number of shares available for issued under
the Scheme was 138,240,000 shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of adoption of the Scheme. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option. Options may be exercised at any time from the
date of grant of the option to the 10th anniversary of the date
of grant as may be determined by the Directors. The exercise
price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share. During the
year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed
and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
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44. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 44, KR T BER AR 2E R
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
As at 31 December 2016 R-E—-X"E+=-A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries iSRS PNGIESEC S = 17,872 17,872
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE ZE R
receivables H A fE R IB 5,835 17,112
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NN S
(note 1) (HtaE1) 274,349 234,041
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTT 48R 39,223 8,219
319,407 259,372
Total assets EEHAE 337,279 277,244
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable EAREEAELRERRFE
to the owners of the Company
Share capital % 7 163,359 134,837
Reserves (note 2) s (HiE2) 173,401 141,997
Total equity mxReE 336,760 276,834
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K E b FE A 5B 519 410
Total liabilities 8RR 519 410
Total equity and liabilities EmLkBEARE 337,279 277,244
Net current assets mMEEEFRE 318,887 258,962
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBBAR 336,760 276,834
Approved by the Board of Director, on 30 March 2017 and R_E—+F=—A=t+HAEESHETH
signed on its behalf by: THATREEEZ:
Zhuang Yuejin Wong Ho Yin
HREE R
Director Director
EZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
' E—NFL A=+ —HIFFE

44. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 44, KR A BRARZER (&)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(1) The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-fee and recoverable on demand.

(2) Movement of the Company's reserves

(1) REEBARIRERAFEELE EEF 28
R IR E SR E -

Foreign
currency
Share  Contributed translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
4 BABH HNEREFE ESi i &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AR®ETT AR®ETT ARMETTT
At 1 January 2015 R=F—RF%—HA—H 72,970 17,219 (4,102) (17,910) 68,177
Gain for the year FE W = = = 6,887 6,887
Other comprehensive income FEEMPE RS
for the year - - 14,422 - 14,422
Total comprehensive income for FEXEN=EE
the year - - 14,422 6,887 21,309
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries (&M B R E]&#E - - (511) - (511)
Issue of shares BT D 53,350 = = = 53,350
Share issue expenses BDBEITHI (328) = = = (328)
At 31 December 2015 and R-_TE—HE+=A
1 January 2016 =+—Bk
- "F—-A—H 125,992 17,219 9,809 (11,023) 141,997
Loss for the year FEERE - - = (104) (104)
Other comprehensive income FEREM2EKE
for the year - - 19,504 - 19,504
Total comprehensive loss FEXHEBRESE
for the year - - 19,504 (104) 19,400
Issue of shares upon placing REEBETRGR 12,834 - - - 12,834
Share issue expenses Mip BITHY (830) = = = (830)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
+-—A=+—8 137,996 17,219 29,313 (11,127) 173,401
45. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 45, REFREGEMBHRE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2017.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERHE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets LA TN AAREBEILZ Ty s EEHFR 2 2 T35
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in the note ¥ 4&HEENBEHE:
below:

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+-—-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T——F T —T-NF —T-—HF ZB-—AE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR%®TR

Revenue WA 166,906 543,377 357,251 195,804 207,824
Gross profit EF 28,406 50,812 50,138 30,372 25,962
Profit before tax & 35 Al g ) 12,295 47,626 29,510 168,006 (135,933)
Loss/profit for the year NAGHE A

attributable to owners EihFE

of the Company &8 F 10,798 43,044 25,880 131,977 (133,580)
Basic loss/earnings per share &R E A g8 Z 7

(RMB cents) (ARED) 2.0 3.8 2.1 8.8 (7.6)

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F —T-—=F —T-NFE —T-—HFE ZB-XE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TRT AR®TT AR®TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 44,099 105,928 111,316 59,150 292,055
Current assets MBEE 196,757 221,725 296,419 594,039 327,471
Current liabilities mBBE 52,862 87,930 70,125 55,864 125,681
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - 4,400 35,436 =
Net assets FEE 187,994 239,723 333,120 561,889 493,845
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